
UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

1. Call to order 
2. Roll call 
3. Pledge of allegiance 
4. Recognition of visitors 
5. Adoption of agenda 
6. Awards / Presentations:  Clint Huling – 30 Years of Service to the City of Unalaska 
7. Minutes of previous meetings:  January 23; February 3; and February 4, 2018 
8. Reports:  City Manager 
9. Community Input / Announcements 
10. Public testimony on agenda items 
11. Legislative 
12. Public hearings 
13. Work session 

a. Discussion: Funding disposal cost of fishing and processing vessel Akutan 
b. Presentation:   Draft CMMP (Capital and Major Maintenance Plan) 

14. Consent agenda  
a. Review seven liquor license renewal applications 
b. Resolution 2018-11:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council establishing taxicab rates for 

calendar year 2018 
c. Resolution 2018-12:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council approving the Council’s goals 

for the FYI9 budget 
d. Resolution 2018-14:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing the City Manager to 

dispose of personal property, specifically a 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine, to an Alaska 
Municipal Corporation or agency thereof 

e. Resolution 2018-19:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council supporting passage of Senate 
Bill 92 

15. Regular agenda 
a. Unfinished Business 
b. New Business 

i. Resolution 2018-15:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council confirming the Mayor’s 
appointments to the Library Advisory Committee; the Parks, Culture and Recreation 
Committee; the Planning Commission and Platting Board; and the Historic Preservation 
Commission  

ii. Resolution 2018-18:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing the 
reimbursement of $36,000 to the State of Alaska for the costs associated with the 
scuttling of the fishing and processing vessel Akutan 

iii. Approve Mayor and Council travel to Juneau, Alaska, March 18-22, 2018, for lobbying, 
the City’s Constituent Dinner and Annual Seafood Reception 

16. Executive Session 
a. Discuss Contract Dispute regarding construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
b. Discuss City Manager Contract Negotiations 

17. Reconvene to Regular Session 
a. Resolution 2018-17:  A Resolution of  the Unalaska City Council authorizing the Mayor to sign 

an Employment Agreement between the City of Unalaska and Thomas E. Thomas to serve as 
City Manager of the City of Unalaska 

18. Council Directives to City Manager 
19. Community Input / Announcements 
20. Adjournment 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, February 13, 2018 
6:00 p.m. 

Unalaska City Hall 
Council Chambers 

43 Raven Way 

Packet Page 1



UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

Regular Meeting               Unalaska City Hall 
Tuesday, January 23, 2018              Council Chambers 
6:00 p.m.                      43 Raven Way 

MINUTES 
1. Call to order 

The regular meeting of the Unalaska City Council was called to order at 6:00 pm, January 23, 2018, in   
the Unalaska City Hall Council chambers.  
  

2.  Roll call 
Present: 

 Frank Kelty, Mayor 
 Dennis Robinson 
 James Fitch      
 Alejandro Tungul 
 David Gregory 
 Shari Coleman 
 
 Absent: 
 Roger Rowland (Excused) 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance - Mayor Kelty led the Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Recognition of visitors - Dan Rozema, KMPG (telephonic) 
5. Minutes of previous meetings  

Robinson made a motion to adopt the January 9, 2018 and January 11, 2018 meeting minutes; Fitch seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 

6. Reports 
a. City Manager  
b. Financials:  December 2017  
c. Boards / Commissions (none) 

7. Awards / Presentations - Community “Extra Mile” Award 
 Mayor Kelty awarded Alvin Bereskin with “Extra Mile” award. 

8. Adoption of agenda 
Gregory made a motion to adopt Agenda; Tungul seconded.  Motion passed by consensus. 

9. Community Input / Announcements  
• PCR 

o Recreation Activities Guide now available 
o Library – 2nd Annual “Stuffed Animal Sleepover” 

• Qawalangin Tribe – New Administrator hired 
• APIA – Health Fair 
• Planning Department – Transportation Study 
• UCSD – Raider Basketball games 
• City Clerk’s 

o Special Election 
o Business License Renewal 
o Board/Commission seat vacancies 

10. Public testimony on agenda items 
11. Legislative 

 
 

Packet Page 2



 
12. Public hearings 

Mayor Kelty opened the Public Hearing on Ordinance 2018-01. 
Hearing no testimony the Public Hearing closed. 

ORDINANCE 2018-01, Second Reading:  An Ordinance of the Unalaska City Council creating Budget 
Amendment no. 3 
 

Mayor Kelty opened the Public Hearing on Ordinance 2018-02. 
Hearing no testimony the Public Hearing closed. 

ORDINANCE 2018-02, Second Reading: An Ordinance of the Unalaska City Council amending Section 
1.24.010 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances to prohibit the Court from reducing fines established by a 
fine schedule for violation of City Ordinances 
 

13. Work session 
Tungul made a motion to enter into Work Session; Robinson seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 

Presentation: FY17 Audit Results 
Discussion:   FY19 Revenue Projections 
Discussion:   FY19 Budget Goals  
 

14. Consent agenda 
 Robinson made a motion to adopt Consent Agenda; Fitch seconded. 
 Motion passed by consensus. 

RESOLUTION 2018-10:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council receiving the Fiscal Year 2017 
audited financial statements of the City of Unalaska 
Review of two liquor license renewal applications from Amelia’s and the Norwegian Rat Saloon 
 

15. Regular agenda 
Unfinished Business 

i. ORDINANCE 2018-01, Second Reading:  An Ordinance of the Unalaska City Council creating 
Budget Amendment no. 3 
 
Robinson made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2018-01; Tungul seconded. 
Roll Call Vote:  Coleman – yes; Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes; Gregory – yes; Fitch – yes 
Motion passed 5-0. 
 

ii. ORDINANCE 2018-02, Second Reading: An Ordinance of the Unalaska City Council amending 
Section 1.24.010 of the Unalaska Code of Ordinances to prohibit the Court from reducing fines 
established by a fine schedule for violation of City Ordinances 

 
Robinson made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2018-02; Fitch seconded. 
Roll Call Vote:  Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes; Gregory – yes; Fitch – yes; Coleman – yes 
Motion passed 5-0. 
 

d. New Business 
i. Proposed Letter of Support for the Appointment of Nicole S. Kimball to the open Alaska seat on 

the North Pacific Fishery Management Council 
 
Gregory made a motion to submit a letter of support for the appointment of Nicole Kimball to the 
open Alaska seat on the North Pacific Fishery Management Council; Robinson seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 

Packet Page 3



 
 
 
 

ii. Travel Approval for the Mayor and Council to attend the 2018 SWAMC Economic Summit and 
Membership Meeting, Anchorage, March 1-2, 2018 
 
Tungul made a motion to approve travel for Mayor and Council Members: Robinson, Gregory, 
and Fitch; Robinson seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 
 

iii. Travel Approval for Council members to attend AML Winter Legislative Conference, Juneau, 
February 20-22, 2018 
 
Gregory made a motion to approve travel for Mayor and Council Member Fitch to attend the AML 
Winter Legislative Conference; Tungul seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 
 

16. Council Directives to City Manager 
• City Manager Interviews in Executive Session 

o Community Member Jim Paulin objected to council conducting City Manager interviews in 
Executive Session 

• Conduct City Manager interviews in Executive Session 
o Unless City Manager is advised otherwise by City Attorney,  City Manager interviews will be  

conducted in Executive Session if it meets the requirements of the  Open Meetings Act   
 

17. Community Input / Announcements 
• PCR - Walking Program 

 
18. Adjournment  
 

Coleman made a motion to adjourn the meeting; Tungul seconded. 
Motion passed by consensus. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:51 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 

Packet Page 4



UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

 
Special Meeting        Unalaska City Hall 
Saturday, February 3, 2018       Council Chambers 
8:00 a.m.               43 Raven Way 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. Call to order 

The special meeting of the Unalaska City Council was called to order at 8:18 am, 
February 3, 2018, in the Unalaska City Hall Council chambers.  
 

2. Roll call 

Present: 
Frank Kelty, Mayor 
Dennis Robinson 
Roger Rowland 
James Fitch 
Alejandro Tungul 
David Gregory 
Shari Coleman 

 

Absent: 
None 
 

3. Executive Session:  Interview City Manager Candidates 

8:20 am - Robinson made a motion to move into Executive Session to discuss matters,   
                which, if discussed in public, could harm the reputation of one or more of the  
                candidates; Fitch seconded. 
 

    Motion passed 6-0. 
 

4. Adjournment 

4:15 pm - Coleman made a motion to adjourn Executive Session and Special Meeting;  
                 Tungul seconded. 

 

      Motion passed 6-0. 

 

                 The meeting adjourned at 4:17 pm. 

 

            _______________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 

Packet Page 5



UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL 
Unalaska, Alaska 

 
Special Meeting          Unalaska City Hall 
Sunday, February 4, 2018         Council Chambers 
9:00 a.m.                 43 Raven Way 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. Call to order 
The special meeting of the Unalaska City Council was called to order at 9:02 am, February 4, 2018, in the Unalaska City 
Hall Council chambers.  
 

2. Roll call 
 
Present:     Absent: 
Frank Kelty, Mayor    None 
Dennis Robinson 
Roger Rowland 
James Fitch 
Alejandro Tungul 
David Gregory 
Shari Coleman 

 
3. Executive Session 

a. Deliberations regarding City Manager Candidates 

9:03   am Robinson made a motion to move into Executive Session to discuss matters, which, if  
                discussed in public, could harm the reputation of one or more of the candidates; Fitch seconded. 
                Motion passed by consensus. 
 
10:47 am Gregory made a motion to reconvene to Regular Session; Robinson seconded. 
 Motion passed by consensus 
 

       4. Regular Session 

b. New Business 

i. Resolution 2018-17:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Negotiate a 
Contract with _____________ for the Position of City Manager 

The City Council unanimously reached a decision during Executive Session to authorize the Mayor to     
enter into contract negotiations with Thomas E. Thomas for the Position of City Manager. 
 
Robinson made a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-17; Tungul seconded. 

Rowland made a motion to amend Resolution 2018-17 to insert the name Thomas E. Thomas; 
Robinson seconded. 
 
Roll Call vote on amended motion:  Gregory – yes; Fitch - yes; Coleman – yes;  
Rowland – yes; Robinson – yes; Tungul – yes. 
Motion passed 6-0. 

Vote on main motion as amended: Tungul – yes; Gregory – yes; Fitch – yes; Coleman – yes; 
Rowland – yes; Robinson – yes. 
Motion passed 6-0.  
 

      5. Adjournment 

 Rowland made a motion to adjourn; Robinson seconded. 
 Motion passed by consensus. 
 
                The meeting adjourned at 10:53 am. 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Marjie Veeder 
City Clerk 
 

Packet Page 6



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-18 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE 
REIMBURSEMENT OF $36,000 TO THE STATE OF ALASKA FOR THE COSTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE SCUTTLING OF THE FISHING AND PROCESSING 
VESSEL AKUTAN 
 
WHEREAS, the fishing and processing vessel Akutan (hereafter Akutan) was escorted 
to Unalaska by the United States Coast Guard (USCG) and anchored in Captains Bay; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Akutan was abandoned by the owner and crew in Captains Bay; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Akutan had no responsible party to repair or remove the vessel from 
Captains Bay; and 

 
WHEREAS, the UCSG exhausted the Superfund for the removal of environmental 
contaminants from the vessel; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC), USCG, 
and the Alaska Department of Natural Resources (DNR) agreed that the anchorage for 
the Akutan would not likely withstand winter storm conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was agreed that the sinking or grounding of the Akutan in Captains Bay 
would have negative, cascading impacts to subsistence fishing, salmon streams, native 
allotments, and navigation as well as negative economic impacts for industry in 
Captains Bay; and 

 
WHEREAS, ADEC, DNR, USCG, and the City of Unalaska collaborated with their 
authorities to form a plan to remove the Akutan from Captains Bay; and 

 
WHEREAS, the USCG approved an emergency scuttle for the Akutan; and 

 
WHEREAS, DNR took custody of the vessel and managed all the ownership of the 
Akutan; and 

 
WHEREAS, DNR negotiated a fair rate for the removal and emergency scuttle of the 
Akutan; and  

 
WHEREAS, DNR has requested that the City of Unalaska reimburse the State for the 
cost of the towing and ammunition for the scuttling of the Akutan; and  
 

Packet Page 7



WHEREAS, The City of Unalaska solicited the support of ADEC, DNR and USCG to 
remove the Akutan from Captains Bay to protect our waters, commerce, and way of life; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, City of Unalaska has notified and agreed with ADEC, DNR and USCG that 
the means for taking control of the Akutan, the financing of the scuttle, and the 
emergency scuttle itself are not precedent-setting for the future removal of abandoned 
and derelict vessels. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Unalaska 
authorizes the reimbursement of $36,000 to the State of Alaska for the costs associated 
with the scuttling of the fishing and processing vessel Akutan. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 
 

Packet Page 8



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Nancy Peterson, City Manager 
Date:  February 13, 2018 
Re: Resolution 2018-18, a Resolution of the Unalaska City Council authorizing 

the reimbursement of $36,000 to the State of Alaska for the costs 
associated with the scuttling of the P/V Akutan 

 
 
SUMMARY: Resolution 2018-18 authorizes the reimbursement of $36,000 to the State 
of Alaska for the cost of scuttling the P/V Akutan. This agreement is the result of the 
City of Unalaska, Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC), Alaska 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) working 
together and within their individual authorities to find a solution without setting a 
precedent for future abandoned or derelict vessels.  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The Council approved Budget Amendment 3 to the 
FY18 budget on January 23, 2018, transferring $31,400 to the City Manager’s budget to 
make funding available to assist with the cost of scuttling the P/V Akutan, if the Council 
determined it was in the best interest of the City to do so. 

BACKGROUND: The Akutan was abandoned in Captains Bay in August 2017. The 
City, DNR, ADEC and USCG formed an after-abandonment exit strategy. The DNR has 
requested financial assistance with the removal of the P/V Akutan. 

DISCUSSION: The fishing and processing vessel Akutan was escorted by the USCG 
Cutter Midget into Captains Bay under an informal request for Port of Refuge and 
without a formal exit strategy. We, the City of Unalaska, did not know the condition of 
the vessel, the financial status of the owner, or any of the other circumstances that 
surfaced during the Akutan’s stay in Unalaska. Had we known the fate of the vessel, it 
would not have changed our authority with the USCG to direct the Akutan to anchor in 
Captains Bay. 

The series of events that unfolded beginning in August 2017 highlighted weaknesses 
and jurisdictional voids within the scope of the State agencies and local governments to 
effectively deal with abandoned and derelict vessels.  

The Unalaska City Council has taken a very active role in the Akutan by expressing very 
specific concerns and questions regarding environmental, navigational and economic 
impacts; the vessel’s proximity to subsistence grounds and native allotments; and the 
ongoing uncertainty of its stability and the sustainability of its anchorage, especially 
during the upcoming with winter months. 

Packet Page 9



Council’s diligent approach allowed City staff to represent the unwavering message that 
“the Akutan must leave the City limits of Unalaska”. Dealing with abandoned and 
derelict vessels is not a simple process. The legal and jurisdictional issues are many 
and complicated, and all the agencies involved face similar, but different, limitations 
within their individual authorities.  

The City, ADEC, DNR and USC teamed together to combine their authorities and 
jurisdictions to provide a legal, simple and cost-effective approach to the removal of the 
Akutan. The ability to utilize the various authorities of these agencies is specific to the 
situation of the Akutan. All the circumstances were taken into consideration, including 
the bankruptcy, the insurance status, the activation the Super Fund, the condition of the 
vessel, the anchorage itself, the historic weather conditions in Captains Bay, as well as 
the cost of a traditional scuttling and EPA permitting, versus a contract for destruction or 
towing to another location. 

It is not the City of Unalaska’s responsibility to bear the cost of the removal of the 
Akutan. The City did have the most to lose by allowing the Akutan to remain at anchor 
in Captains Bay. For this reason, we remained engaged in the process through to the 
point of the vessel’s destruction. USCG used its authorities to issue an emergency 
scuttle permit, DNR used their authority to take custody of the vessel, and the City of 
Unalaska agreed to bring forward to Council the financial request to pay for the scuttling 
costs. 

The City of Unalaska also had a similar authority to take control of the vessel, but less 
authority to leverage a swift and cost-effective removal of the vessel. We strongly 
encouraged DNR to exercise their authority, and by doing so, DNR was able to leverage 
a stronger political position from which to work with USCG for the emergency scuttle.  

The contract before you represents the cost of removing the Akutan from anchor, the 
cost of towing, and the ammunition for scuttling. City Council has expressed valid 
concern regarding setting a precedent for the City of Unalaska becoming the “bone 
yard” for derelict and abandoned vessels. The team approach to the removal of the 
Akutan has heightened the awareness of all the agencies to the many issues 
surrounding abandoned and derelict vessels, vessels in distress, and Possible Ports of 
Refuge. Sharing the responsibility for solving the Akutan situation has mitigated the 
perception of direct ownership of the problem.  The above agencies were aware, and/or 
part of the decision-making matrix for the arrival and anchoring of the Akutan in 
Captains Bay. The outcome of the Akutan resulted in all of the agencies reviewing 
processes regarding harboring vessels in distress.  

As after-action, the Port Department is preparing a brief for the City Council on the 
designation of Potential Port of Refuge and the City’s authorities within that designation. 
Other agencies are also reviewing the role in distressed vessel placement and opening 
communication lines between the local and State authorities and the USCG.  

The City of Unalaska has been requested to fund $36,000 for the logistics of the 
emergency scuttle. This is a reasonable amount, considering that the remaining options 

Packet Page 10



ranged from $500,000 to $1,500,000. The multi-agency approach dilutes the necessity 
for one agency to bear the burden of responsibility for the Akutan. The only reason the 
Akutan has been removed from the City of Unalaska is because of the cooperative 
effort of the ADEC, DNR, USCG and the City of Unalaska. For these reasons, we are 
requesting the City Council approve a reimbursement to DNR in the amount of $36,000 
to pay for the cost of the scuttling of the Akutan. 

ALTERNATIVES: Council could choose to not support Resolution 2018-18 or could 
choose to reimburse less than the $36,000 requested. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The City of Unalaska has amended the City Manager’s 
Budget to include $31,400 for financial assistance in the scuttling of the Akutan. 
Additional funds are available within that budget to fund the full amount of $36,000. 

LEGAL: The City Attorney has reviewed and approved the attached Reimbursement 
Agreement with the State.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2018-18. 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution 2018-18. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: This is a difficult decision for the Council because of 
the concern for setting a precedent for future obligations in similar circumstances. The 
City was an integral part of the discussions regarding the Akutan and advocated 
strongly for the removal of the vessel from our waters. The amount that the State is 
requesting is significantly lower than originally estimated. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 1. Letter from the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources 

 2. Contract from Resolve Marine Group 

 3. Reimbursement Agreement with the State 

 

Packet Page 11



Packet Page 12



Packet Page 13



Packet Page 14



Page of1 2CT 10  180000629 - 1

CONTRACT

EXPIRES:

% / Note: The State will pay within
30 days if no payment terms
are defined here.

PAYMENT TERMS

Contract Amount:

Tel: Fax:

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

EFFECTIVE:

AWARD DATE

NUMBER

VENDOR

CT 10  180000629 - 1

 Department of Natural Resources

January  10, 2018 DBA: FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33316-1729 US

VC016612 1510 SE 17TH ST STE 400

RESOLVE MARINE GROUP INC 
 
1510 SE 17TH ST STE 400 
 
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33316-1729 US

January  10, 2018 March  31, 2018

Services to Scuttle FV Akutan for DMLW $30,000.00

Extended Description:
Contractor to provide services to scuttle the FV Akutan per the requirements of Appendices A through D to this contract,
RFQ 180000045, Amendment 1 to this RFQ, and accepted quote to this RFQ. RFQ 180000045, Amendment 1 to this
RFQ, and accepted quote to this RFQ are incorporated by reference into this contract.

End Date

Unit Cost Line AmountQuantity Unit

Delivery Date

DescriptionLine No.

Start Date F.O.B. Point

1 Services to Scuttle FV Akutan for DMLW 0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

01/10/18 03/31/18 F.O.B. final destination

BILL TO: SHIP TO: @(If ("Suite 1070")>=0 ,"

Anchorage
550 West 7th Avenue

MLW - Suite 1070 (Director) ANC 
Mining, Land and Water 
550 West 7th Avenue Suite 1070 
Anchorage, AK 99501-3579

Attn: Mining, Land and Water Attn: 

@(If ("")>=0 ,"

Extended Description:
Contractor to provide services to scuttle the FV Akutan per the requirements of Appendices A through D to this contract,
RFQ 180000045, Amendment 1 to this RFQ, and accepted quote to this RFQ. RFQ 180000045, Amendment 1 to this
RFQ, and accepted quote to this RFQ are incorporated by reference into this contract.

Packet Page 15



on supporting documents are correct, that this voucher constitutes a legal
cited, that sufficient funds are encumbered to pay this obligation, or

in the appropriation cited to cover this obligation. I am aware that to knowingly
on a public record, or knowingly destroy, mutilate, suppress, conceal,

, Iegibility or availability of a public record constitutes tampering with
AS 11.56.815-.820. Other disciplinary action may be taken up to and including

CERTIFICATION:
I certify that the facts herein

charge against funds and
that there is a sufficient
make or allow false entries or
remove or otherwise impair the
public records punishable
dismissal.

PROCUREMENT OFFICER:

Name: James Sonnier

Contact: (907)269-8687

Email: jim.sonnier@alaska.

ru"' /rt o /A**.mc-"-

Date: i $.^, i Zr Z€) iA

Name:

Signature:

Title:

Date:

Name:

Signature:

Title:

Date:

cT 10 180000629 - 1

Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



APPENDIX B1

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Article 1. Indemnification

The Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the contracting agency from and against any
claim of, or liability for error, omission or negligent act of the Contractor under this agreement. The
Contractor shall not be required to indemnify the contracting agency for a claim of, or liability for, the
independent negligence of the contracting agency. If there is a claim of, or liability for, the joint negligent
error or omission of the Contractor and the independent negligence of the Contracting agency, the
indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be apportioned on a comparative fault basis.
“Contractor” and “Contracting agency”, as used within this and the following article, include the
employees, agents and other contractors who are directly responsible, respectively, to each. The term
“independent negligence” is negligence other than in the Contracting agency’s selection, administration,
monitoring, or controlling of the Contractor and in approving or accepting the Contractor’s work.

Article 2. Insurance

Without limiting contractor's indemnification, it is agreed that contractor shall purchase at its own
expense and maintain in force at all times during the performance of services under this agreement the
following policies of insurance. Where specific limits are shown, it is understood that they shall be the
minimum acceptable limits. If the contractor's policy contains higher limits, the state shall be entitled to
coverage to the extent of such higher limits. Certificates of Insurance must be furnished to the contracting
officer prior to beginning work and must provide for a notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or material
change of conditions in accordance with policy provisions. Failure to furnish satisfactory evidence of
insurance or lapse of the policy is a material breach of this contract and shall be grounds for termination
of the contractor's services. All insurance policies shall comply with and be issued by insurers licensed to
transact the business of insurance under AS 21.

2.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall provide and maintain, for all
employees engaged in work under this contract, coverage as required by AS 23.30.045, and; where
applicable, any other statutory obligations including but not limited to Federal U.S.L. & H. and
Jones Act requirements. The policy must waive subrogation against the State.

2.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance: covering all business premises and operations used by
the Contractor in the performance of services under this agreement with minimum coverage limits
of $300,000 combined single limit per claim.

2.3 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: covering all vehicles used by the Contractor in the
performance of services under this agreement with minimum coverage limits of $300,000.
combined single limit per claim.

2.4. Marine General Liability Coverage: the contractor shall provide coverage for all marine
operations with limits of not less than $5,000,000 with a pollution liability endorsement

Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Request for Quotations
Department of Natural Resources

NUMBER

RFQ 10 180000045 - I

DATE OF ISSUE

January 02,2018

TITLE OF SOLICITATION:

Services to Scuttle the F/V Akutan

DEADLINE FOR RESPONSES:

January 09, 2018 14:00:00 Alaska Time

BID RECEIVING LOCATION

Support Services ANC Admin

Attn: Procurement
550 West 7th Avenue
Suite '1330

Anchorage, AK 99501 -3564

VENDOR:

Name: Resolve Magone Marine Services Alaska

Address: 6231 S Air Park Place

City, State, Zip Code: Anchorage AK 99502

Phone #: 907-243-0069

Email Address: tduke@resolvemarine.com

Contact Name: Todd Duke

Contact Email: Tduke@resolvemarine.com

Vendor #:

lnc

PURPOSE OF SOLICITATION:
The Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining Land and Water, requires the services of a qualified contractor
to scuttle the FV Akutan as specified within this RFQ.

IHlg 1s-I9Il!,,oR-DFl L- ll

BID SCHEDULE

Solicitation Closing Date/Time

LINE ITEMS
Line No. Description Quantitv Unit Unit Cost

1 Services to Scuttle the FA/ Akutan
1 Lot $36,000.00

Start Date End Date Deliverv Date F.O.B- Point Extended Line Total

01t14t18 03t31t18
Approx Jan 19 < ependent on weather

Dutch Harbor AK $36,000.00
Extended Description:
Services to scuttle the FV Akutan as specified within this RFQ.

Rev.12114 Page 1 of2Packet Page 24



EVALUATION CRITERIA

Code Criteria Description Points Vendor Response
(DO NOT LlSrPR/CES tN THIS SECTION. UN|T
PRICES AND TOTAL PRICES MUST BE FILLED

tN ADJACENT TO THEIR LINE ITEMS.)

12 Minimum Req U

18 Cost 100% 100

PREFERENCES

Does your business qualify for the Alaska
bidder peference?

Does your business qualify for the Alaska
veteran peference?

lxlv"" E*o [l v"" E *"
lmportant Notice: lf you received this solicitation from the State of Alaska's "Vendor Self-Service" web site, you
must register with the procurement officer to receive subsequent amendments. Failure to contact the
procurement officer may result in the rejection of your offer.

PROCUREMENT OFFICER: James Sonnier

TELEPHONE NUMBER: (907)269-8687

EMAIL: jim.sonnier@alaska.gov

Terms and Conditions
No. Name Section

005 Reouest for Quotes 1

Rev.12114 Page 2 ot 2Packet Page 25



Solicitation Assemble

{80000045

Document Phase

Final

Document Description

Services to Scuttle the FA/ Akutan

Page 5 of 14

b. Total Cost to provide services specified within this RFQ: $. $36,000.00

7. Questions. Questions must be in writing. Direct any questions to the DNR
Procurement Officer via fax to 907-269-8909 or email to
d n r.ssd. procu rement@a laska. gov.

8. Submitting Quotes. Quotes may be emailed to dnr.ssd.procurement@alaska.gov,
faxed to 907-269-8909, or mailed to DNR/SSD Procurement, Attn: Jim Sonnier, 550 W.
7tn Avenue, Suite 1330, Anchorage, Alaska, 99501 . At a minimum the bidder must
submit a completed page 'l of this RFQ and the Quote Schedule shown above. Quotes
must be received prior to 2:00 p.m. on January 9,2018. Late quotes will be rejected.

9. Appendices. Terms, conditlons, and specifications of the documents attached to
this RFQ are considered a part of it. Successful bidder will be required to provide
proof of insurance as specified in Appendix 81 with Marine Liability provisions
within 1 business day after notification of award and to comply with provisions of
the attached Appendix A.

Packet Page 26



State of Alaska  
Department of Natural Resources 
Division of Mining, Land and Water 

and 
City of Unalaska 

 
Reimbursement Agreement 
For Disposal of F/V Akutan 

 
This Reimbursement Agreement is entered into between the City of Unalaska (Unalaska), with 
its principal office located at Unalaska City Hall, 43 Raven Way, Unalaska, Alaska 99685 and the 
State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining, Land and Water  (DNR‐
DMLW),  with  a  principal mailing  address  of  550 West  7th  Avenue,  Suite  1070,  Anchorage, 
Alaska, 99501, under its’ authority of AS 38.05.035 for purposes of disposing of a derelict vessel 
under AS 30.30.  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this agreement is so that Unalaska can reimburse DNR‐DMLW up to the amount 
of $36,000 for the costs associated with the scuttling of the F/V Akutan from Captains Bay, near 
Unalaska.   
 
Project Scope 
 
DNR‐DMLW has taken custody of F/V Akutan, currently moored in trespass in Captains Bay near 
Dutch  Harbor,  as  a  derelict  vessel  under  AS  30.30.    DNR‐DMLW  has  properly  notified  all 
necessary and interested parties as well as the general public of its intention to dispose of the 
derelict  vessel.    No  party  has  stepped  forward  to  claim  the  Akutan,  either  as  an  owner, 
lienholder or purchaser.   Therefore, DNR‐DMLW  intends  to proceed with  the disposal of  this 
vessel as soon as it is practicable and safe to do so. 

 
In order  to proceed with  the disposal, DNR‐DMLW has  coordinated with Federal agencies  to 
expedite removal of Akutan and secure a necessary declaration  from the United States Coast 
Guard that an emergency exists for purposes of scuttling the vessel.  For this effort, DNR‐DMLW 
has also entered  into a contract with Resolve Marine Group, Inc.  in the amount of $36,000 to 
tow and scuttle the vessel as soon as weather conditions allow.  Unalaska has graciously agreed 
to provide financial assistance for this effort by agreeing to reimburse DNR‐DMLW for the cost 
of the contract with Resolve Marine.   
 
It is mutually agreed that: 
 

1. The DNR‐DMLW will work with Resolve Marine Group to fulfill the terms of that contract.   

2. Within  30  days  of  authorizing  payment  to  Resolve Marine  Group  under  the  terms  of  that 

contract, DNR‐DMLW will send Unalaska a copy of the paid receipt to seek reimbursement.  

Packet Page 27



3. Unalaska will submit the reimbursement payment to DNR‐DMLW within 30 days of receiving a 

copy of the paid receipt.   

4. Nothing in this agreement is intended to conflict with Federal, State or local laws or regulations. 

If  there are  conflicts,  the agreement will be amended at  the  first opportunity  to bring  it  into 

conformance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

Principal Contacts 
Division of Mining Land and Water:    City of Unalaska: 
Brent W. Goodrum        Mayor Frank Kelty 
550 W. 7th Ave. Ste. 1070      Unalaska City Hall 
Anchorage, AK 99501       43 Raven Way 
Phone: (907) 269‐8600      Unalaska, AK 99685 
Email: brent.goodrum@alaska.gov    Phone: (907) 581‐1251, ext. 2201 
            Email: MayorKelty@ci.unalaska.ak.us 
 
Authorized Representatives 
 
By  signature  below,  Unalaska  and  DNR‐DMLW  certify  that  the  individuals  listed  in  this 
document as representatives are authorized to act in their respective duties for matters related 
to this agreement. 
 
Division of Mining, Land and Water      City of Unalaska, Alaska 
 
________________________________    ________________________________ 
Brent W. Goodrum          Frank Kelty 
 
 
________________________________    ________________________________ 
Date              Date 
 

Packet Page 28



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Bil Homka, Director – Planning Department 
Through: Nancy Peterson, Interim-City Manager 
Date:  February 8, 2018 
Re: Draft Capital Maintenance and Management Plan (CMMP) FY19-23  
 
 
SUMMARY:  This preliminary draft of the CMMP will be presented to City Council on 
February 13, 2018.  This is the first year that we will make a presentation to council at 
this point in time in the CMMP process.  There are 18 projects requesting funding in FY 
19, with a total of 34 projects in the overall FY19-23 CMMP. The Rolling Stock portion of 
the CMMP, dealing with the vehicle replacements, will be presented at a later date. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  There has been no Council action on the FY19-23 
CMMP to date. 

BACKGROUND:  City Council reviews the CMMP each year for an opportunity to have 
input and subsequently adopt the CMMP as part of the overall budgeting process. 

DISCUSSION: The FY2019 CMMP has 18 projects that are either new projects, or 
projects that Administration is requesting additional funding for completion.  There are 
Nine (9) General Fund projects, two (2) Electrical fund projects, two (2) Wastewater 
fund projects, one (1) Water fund project, three (3) Ports fund projects and one (1) 
Housing fund project. 

In addition, there are 16 other projects identified for pre-development, design, or 
construction during FY20-13. 

Staff will provide a brief overview of the FY 19 projects during a work session at the 
February 13th Council meeting.  Attached are preliminary project descriptions for all of 
the projects in the FY19-23 CMMP.  Information on these sheets will be more detailed 
and projects may move between years as we have more time to evaluate the budgets.  
This is just a preliminary review of what we see on the horizon for upcoming projects. 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  The FY2019 CMMP proposes $9,763,377 in funding for 
projects.  Staff is continuing to refine the costs and will make recommendations for 
moving projects to later years if needed to balance the FY19 budget. 

LEGAL:  N/A 

  

Packet Page 29



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Please provide staff with any comments, suggestions or 
ideas resulting from the presentation about the CMMP. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  No action is being requested at this time.  This is just a preview 
of the proposed projects and will look forward to Council comments regarding the 
projects. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  This is just a preview of the proposed projects and will 
look forward to Council comments regarding the projects.  Unfortunately, getting stuck 
in Anchorage all week did not allow me to work with Mr. Homka on this final draft.  Many 
hours of work goes into the work of preparing the CMMP document – many thanks to 
the Planning Department staff for leading this effort! 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. CMMP Project / Funding Spreadsheets 
2. CMMP Project Summary Sheets 

Packet Page 30



City of Unalaska
Capital and Major Maintenance Plan

FY2019 - FY2023
Estimated Project and Purchase Timelines 

(excluding new vehicle purchases & replacements) 

Fund or Department
Project                                                  

(Projects in boldface are newly included in this year's CMMP, 
other projects have been updated from previous CMMPs.)

Ap
pr
op

ria
te
d 

Fu
nd

s

Av
ai
la
bl
e 

Ba
la
nc
e 
   
   
 

(a
s o

f 1
/18

/18
)

FY
 1
9 
Re

qu
es
t

To
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 

Co
st

Public Works Haystack Security Fence $139,000 $139,000 $156,665 $295,665
Public Works Causeway Culvert Replacement $0 $0 $100,000 $800,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Sitka Spruce Park Improvements $0 $0 $70,000 $407,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Town Park Improvements $0 $0 $340,000 $340,000
Public Safety Radio Upgrade $0 $0 $200,000 $810,550
Public Safety ALS Defibrilators $0 $0 $65,500 $65,500
Public Safety Fire Training Facility $0 $0 $12,000 $626,627
Public Safety DPS Building Assessment $0 $0 $100,000 $100,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Unalaska Public Library Improvements (Cost is TBD in FY20 & FY21) $42,500 $39,000 $357,500 $4,600,000
Electric-Production Generator Sets Rebuild $0 $0 $1,267,306 $6,595,110
Electric-Production Old Powerhouse Battery Replacement $263,070 $194,873 $250,000 $513,070
Wastewater Eastpoint Rd Sewer Line Repair (Sliplining) $415,000 $29,000 $492,400 $807,400
Wastewater Lift Station 2 and 5 Discharge Pipe $122,250 $117,243 $300,000 $422,250
Water Generals Hill Water Booster Pump $21,600 $21,600 $200,000 $571,600
Ports & Harbors Coast Guard Security Building Replacement $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000
Ports & Harbors Harbor Office Communication Line $0 $0 $152,000 $152,000
Ports & Harbors UMC Laydown Area $0 $0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000
Housing Lear Road Duplexes Kitchen Renovation $124,994 $116,554 $275,006 $400,000

$9,763,377

Regardless of when a project might be funded, many remain 
active in other fiscal years. The purpose of this table is to 

provide an overview of the estimated project timelines identified 
in the nominations for the current CMMP and to display the 

allocation of valuable staffing resources.  Projects identified in 
previous CMMP's that are not in need of additonal funding in 

the current CMMP are not included below. 

Pre-Design

Engineering / Design

Construction / Purchase

TOTAL FY19 FUNDING REQUEST

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Packet Page 31



City of Unalaska
Capital and Major Maintenance Plan

FY2019 - FY2023
Estimated Project and Purchase Timelines

(excluding new vehicle purchases & replacements) 

Fund or Department
Project                                                  

(Projects in boldface are newly included in this year's CMMP, 
other projects have been updated from previous CMMPs.)

Ap
pr
op

ria
te
d 

Fu
nd

s

Av
ai
la
bl
e 

Ba
la
nc
e 
   
   
 

(a
s o

f 1
/18

/18
)

FY
 1
9 
Re

qu
es
t

To
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 

Co
st

Public Works Haystack Security Fence $139,000 $139,000 $156,665 $295,665
Public Works Causeway Culvert Replacement $0 $0 $100,000 $800,000
Public Works DPW Equipment Storage Bldg $0 $0 $0 $1,545,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Sitka Spruce Park Improvements $0 $0 $70,000 $407,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Town Park Improvements $0 $0 $340,000 $340,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Tennis Court Improvements $0 $0 $0 $50,000
Public Safety Radio Upgrade $0 $0 $200,000 $810,550
Public Safety ALS Defibrilators $0 $0 $65,500 $65,500
Public Safety Fire Training Facility $0 $0 $12,000 $626,627
Public Safety DPS Building Assessment $0 $0 $100,000 $100,000
Parks, Culture & Recreation Unalaska Public Library Improvements (Cost is TBD in FY20 & FY21) $42,500 $39,000 $357,500 $4,600,000
Public Works - Fac Maint Burma Road Chapel Roof Ventilation Upgrades $0 $0 $0 $560,000
General Fund, Electric, Water & WW Captain's Bay Road and Utilities $0 $0 $0 $24,300,000
Planning Henry Swanson House $0 $0 $0 $50,000
Electric-Production Generator Sets Rebuild $0 $0 $1,267,306 $6,595,110
Electric - Production Wind Energy (Cost is TBD from FY19-FY22) $200,000 $151,319 $0 $200,000
Electric-Production Old Powerhouse Battery Replacement $263,070 $194,873 $250,000 $513,070
Electric-Production 4th ORC $0 $0 $0 $553,103
Wastewater Eastpoint Rd Sewer Line Repair (Sliplining) $415,000 $29,000 $492,400 $807,400
Wastewater Lift Station 2 and 5 Discharge Pipe $122,250 $117,243 $300,000 $422,250
Water Generals Hill Water Booster Pump $21,600 $21,600 $200,000 $571,600
Water CT Tank Interior Maintenance and Painting $0 $0 $0 $1,053,000
Water Pyramid Water Storage Tank $625,000 $531,338 $0 $9,134,943
Solid Waste Reinsulation of Baler Building $0 $0 $0 $537,020
Solid Waste Composting Project $105,000 $105,000 $0 $830,000

General Fund Entrance Channel Dredging $1,500,000 $750,912 $0 $6,500,000
Ports & Harbors LCD and UMC Dredging $109,650 $109,650 $0 $2,041,650
Ports & Harbors Robert Storrs Small Boat Harbor Improvements (A & B Float) $50,000 $27,640 $0 $10,630,000
Ports & Harbors Coast Guard Security Building Replacement $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000
Ports & Harbors Harbor Office Communication Line $0 $0 $152,000 $152,000
Ports & Harbors UMC Laydown Area $0 $0 $5,400,000 $5,400,000
Airport Airport Terminal Roof Replacement (Cost is TBD in FY 19) $140,000 $140,000 $0 TBD
Housing Lear Road Duplexes Kitchen Renovation $124,994 $116,554 $275,006 $400,000
Housing 4-Plex Roof Replacement $0 $0 $0 $498,550

$9,763,377TOTAL FY19 FUNDING REQUEST

Pre-Design

Engineering / Design

Construction / Purchase

Regardless of when a project might be funded, many remain 
active in other fiscal years. The purpose of this table is to 

provide an overview of the estimated project timelines identified 
in the nominations for the current CMMP and to display the 

allocation of valuable staffing resources.  Projects identified in 
previous CMMP's that are not in need of additonal funding in 

the current CMMP are not included below. 

FY 2021FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2023FY 2022

Packet Page 32



 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (DPS)   156,665          156,665 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant  139,000            139,000 

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $ 139,000 156,665         295,665 

Requested Funds: Engineering, Construction, Inspection, Contract Administration 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Haystack Security Fence | DPW 

Project Description:   Approximately 700’ of commercial grade security fencing 
will be installed around the Unalaska telecommunications facilities on Haystack 
mountain including 8’ high galvanized steel chain link “cyclone” fencing, steel 
posts embedded in concrete, two sliding gates, barbed wire on the top 2’ at a 45 
degree angle outward, and one man-gate.   
 

Project Need:   Lack of security fencing has been identified as a vulnerability dur-
ing annual security drills.  Several agencies use this facility for critical communica-
tions including the City of Unalaska, United States Coast Guard, and the State of 
Alaska.  Physical security of the facility is required to create a controlled access 
point, which enables law enforcement to better screen personnel for potential  
terrorists, acts of vandalism, and theft.  This project creates statewide benefits by 
securing the area with controlled ingress/egress points for anyone using telecom-
munications via the facility.   
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):   Concept 
plans and a budgetary cost estimate have been developed.  Detailed plans,  
specifications, and cost estimate will be finalized in FY19. 
Cost & Financing Data:   Funding derived from grant and General Fund. 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2017 

Engineering/Design:  FY 2018 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering, Design, Const Admin 51,000  

 Other Professional Services (Survey) 2,500  

 Construction Services 180,000  

 Machinery & Equipment (Security System) 23,600  

 Subtotal 257,100  

 Contingency 38,565  

 TOTAL 295,665  

 Less Existing Funds (Grant) (139,000) 

 Total FY19 Request $ 156,665  

Packet Page 33



Project Description:   Replace failing culverts under Broadway Avenue causeway be-

tween Methodist Church and Dutton Road.   

Project Need:  This project was listed as a need in the 2013 Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The 

two existing metal culverts that allow drainage from Dutton Lake and surrounding water-

shed into Iluliaq Lake are old, rusted, and showing signs of collapse and need to be re-

placed.  Salmon are known to spawn in the Dutton Lake stream. 

Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):   The project 

is in early stage concept.  A complete design will be required along with USACOE and Fish & 

Game permitting will be required.  Dutton Lake and the stream feeding into Dutton Lake 

are anadromous and do support fish habitat and spawning.  As recently as 2016, Fish and 

Game documented fish in the Lake and stream.   

Cost & Financing Data:   No cost data is available but preliminary estimates are in the 

$800,000 range. 

 

 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (Department)  100,000 700,000       800,000 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $  100,000 700,000       800,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Causeway Culverts| General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2019 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 100,000  

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 15,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 500,000  

 Subtotal 615,000  

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 185,000  

 Total $     800,000  

Packet Page 34



Project Description:  This is an 80’ x 120’ unheated pole building with a gravel floor to 

be located at the DPW/U site.  This is not a mechanic shop but a well-lit equipment stor-

age building protecting both equipment and employees from the elements during the 

normal course of their work preparing equipment for use. 

Project Need:  The building will improve winter emergency response time, extend the life 

of trucks, trailers, graders, snow plows, and snow blowers.  The building will also decrease 

equipment maintenance expense.  The building will also greatly improve the ability of 

employees called upon to service and prepare equipment for response and routine use by 

keeping them protected from heavy rains, blowing snow, and harsh wind storms—work 

often accomplished in the darkness of winter.  The building will reduce the time employ-

ees currently expend fighting the elements in order to prepare equipment for use. 

Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  The building 

will have electricity and will require fire marshal review.  This project is only in concept 

stage. 

Cost & Financing Data:   This will be funded via the general fund. 

 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (Department)         195,000 1,350,000 1,545,000 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $        195,000 1,350,000 1,545,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

DPW Equipment Bldg.| General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2019 

Engineering/Design:  FY 2022 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2023 

Proposed  

Building 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction  195,000  

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 34,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 9,600 SF x $100  960,000  

 Subtotal 1,189,000  

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal  356,000  

 Total $ 1,545,000  

Packet Page 35



Project Description:  Fully fund the engineering and construction of a new Sitka Spruce 
Park, also known as “Pirate Park,” opened in 1979. This park includes picnic tables, a play-
ground, stationary grill, bike rack, restrooms, a gravel trail, and a significant amount of 
trees for which it is a National Historic Landmark.  This project is intended to replace the 
existing structures which were constructed during the original construction of the park. 
 

Project Need:  In 2015, the swing set was replaced with a new swing designed to accom-

modate more children. While the equipment has been well maintained since its construc-

tion, all of it has seen some significant wear.  The current equipment needing to be re-

placed consists of a large seesaw, three rocking horses, and a large piece of equipment 

made to look like a ship. When these items were built, this replacement project was 

planned for 2019. This project is included in the CMMP for the following purposes: 

 Improve the quality of the park and the current structures. 

 Evaluate the current and future facility in an effort to best accommodate Unalaska resi-

dents for the next 20 to 30 years. 

Project Plan and Status: After receiving a large amount of public input during FY17 and 

FY18, PCR staff and the PCR Advisory Board decided the original plans weren’t as extensive 

as the general public preferred.  The project will be designed in FY19 and design is antici-

pated to be $70,000.  Construction is anticipated to be $275,000 for the playground equip-

ment in FY20 and $50,000 for the basketball court and art wall in FY21.  

 

 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (PCR)  70,000 287,000 50,000    407,000 

1% Sales Tax           

Grant           

Proprietary Fund            

TOTALS $  70,000 287,000 50,000   407,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering and Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Sitka Spruce Park Improvements | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase or Construction: FY 2020 and FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 70,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 10,000 

 Construction Services 236,000 

 Subtotal 316,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 91,000 

 Total $  407,000 

Packet Page 36



Project Description:  Town Park opened in 1988 and is located in downtown Unalaska. 

This park includes a wooden gazebo, two picnic tables, a small playground, a stationary 

grill, and several spruce trees. This project will replace the existing structures that were 

constructed during the original construction of the park. 

Project Need:  In 2015, one of the large playground structures was replaced and was very 

well received by the children of Unalaska. The other playground equipment constructed 

was expected to last until Fiscal Year 2020. This replacement project is planned for the 

summer of 2020. This proposal is being submitted in order to: 

 Improve the quality of the park and the current structures. 

 Evaluate the current and future facility in an effort to best accommodate Unalaska 

residents for the next 20 to 30 years. 

Project Plan And Funding:  During FY17 and FY18, PCR staff and the PCR Advisory Board 

performed an assessment of the requirements of Town Park, taking into consideration the 

stated needs and desires of community members and users of the park. The project will be 

designed in FY19 and constructed in FY20. Design is anticipated to be $50,000 and con-

struction is anticipated to be $290,000. These numbers are rough cost estimates based on 

the original cost of the construction of the park. 

  

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (PCR)  340,000      340,000 

1% Sales Tax           

Grant            

Proprietary Fund            

TOTALS $  340,000          340,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering and Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Town Park Improvements | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Feasibility/Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 50,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 10,000 

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 200,000 

 Subtotal 260,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 80,000 

 Total $     340,000 

Packet Page 37



Project Description:  Ounalashka Park was built in 1999 and is located in Unalaska valley.  
It is the department’s largest park and includes a softball field, outdoor basketball/tennis 
court, and a paved trail with some permanent exercise stations.  In addition to the athletic 
equipment, it also has a playground, pavilion, and a snack shack which is occasionally used 
during PCR events. 
Project Need:  In 2012, the court was resurfaced with plastic tiles in the hopes that they 
would be in improvement over the worn out court.  However, they do not offer a particu-
larly realistic tennis surface and the court is two feet too short.  The purpose of this pro-
ject is to: 

 Improve the quality of the park and what it has to offer. 

 Evaluate the current and future facility in an effort to best accommodate Unalaska 
residents for the next 20 to 30 years. 

 Raise Council awareness of the need to bring an authentic tennis facility to the island. 
Project Plan And Funding:  During FY19 and FY20 PCR staff and the Advisory Board will 
gauge public interest in bringing a covered facility with two regulation tennis courts.  The 
estimated cost is $500,000 which means that $50,000 or 10% is planned to be spent in  
FY22 for design and scoping.  These are WAG numbers and more concrete numbers will 
replace them as the project comes closer to completion. 
  

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (PCR)      50,000 50,000 

1% Sales Tax           

Grant            

Proprietary Fund            

TOTALS $       50,000  50,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering and Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Tennis Court Improvement | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Feasibility/Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2023 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2024 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 50,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const TBD  

 Machinery and Equipment TBD 

 Construction Services 50,000  

 Subtotal 50,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $     50,000  

Packet Page 38



Project Description:  This project will upgrade the current radio system by replacing components 
that include; repeaters, transmitters, antenna systems, and console software operating systems.  This 
project will ensure the radio system becomes compliant with FCC regulations requiring further ‘narrow 
banding’ of public entity radio systems, and will additionally upgrade our current 911 system to be-
come an ‘enhanced 911’ (E911) system with expansion options for location mapping and CAD 
(Computer Aided Dispatch) software for incident and event records.  
Project Need:  The City of Unalaska utilizes  seven radio channels, and all seven channels are main-
tained and operated by Public Safety.  This mission critical system is one of our primary methods of 
communicating during daily activities as well as disasters.  It is designed to provide redundancy in the 
event of a multi-hazard event.  In FY16 two a systems audit was conducted (the R56 audit), which 
showed there were many problems with the two repeater sites and the system’s aging components.  
Most of the radio system components were purchased around 2005, system parts are no longer manu-
factured and the components cannot be programed to the frequency ranges which are now required 
by the FCC.   
The E911 system will provide dispatch with the location of the person calling 911 on both wired or 
wireless phone system, and will result in decreased response times to emergencies.  Not incorporating 
E911 does not affect FCC narrow-banding requirements, nor does it affect the age and condition of our 
current radio equipment.  An investment in a compliant, properly installed communication system will 
support site repair work, new equipment and new equipment warranty.  
Development Plan & Status:   The R56 audit was conducted in FY16 and identified problems with 
both repeater sites, and with the radio system’s components. The contractor will utilize the audit to 
conduct the needed upgrades, repairs, and  replacements in order to obtain R56 audit compliance and 
ensure operation at the frequency ranges that are required by the FCC.  The E911 system will be devel-
oped after R56 compliance has been achieved, in a two phased approach—phase one provides caller ID 
and caller location for landline phones, and phase two provides  caller location for landline and cellular 
phones using GPS mapping and coordinates.   
Cost & Financing Data:  The funding for this project will be for a contractor to upgrade, replace and 
install radio system components, as 
well as install the consoles, hard-
ware and software needed for both 
FCC-required narrow-banding and 
E911 systems.  One funding option 
is to solely utilize the general fund 
to pay for the project.  This project 
is estimated at $625,000.00. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (Public Safety)          200,000 610,550       810,550 

1% Sales Tax             

Grant             

            

TOTALS $          200,000  610,550      810,550 

Requested Funds:  Potential exists to enact a telecommunication surcharge that would pay for a portion of the project. 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Radio Upgrade | Public Safety 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 20,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 3,500  

 Machinery and Equipment 500,000 

 Construction Services 100,000  

 Subtotal 623,500 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 187,050 

 Total $     810,550  

Packet Page 39



Project Description:  This project will update the current Cardiac Monitor and Defibrilla-
tors in the ambulances for Medic 1 and Medic 2 to keep pace with the evolving world of 
Emergency Medicine. 
 

Project Need:   The City of Unalaska Fire Department currently utilizes the ZOLL E-Series 
Cardiac Monitor and Defibrillator. These Monitors have been discontinued by the manu-
facturer and are no longer supported with parts or software updates. The Fire Department 
and citizens of Unalaska are at risk when these monitors fail because a lives are at risk and 
the city may have liability expose. The procurement of the new ZOLL X-series monitors 
would return the Fire Department to industry standards and provide interoperability with 
IFHS and medevac services to help streamline continuity of patient care. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):   This project will 
be purchased through the Fire Rescue GPO program. When purchased a ZOLL representa-
tive will come to Unalaska and provide an In-service training for the fire department so 
these monitors can be placed in-service immediately upon arrival.  
 

Cost & Financing Data:   The funding for the project will be for the purchase of two Car-
diac Monitor and Defibrillators, new mounting brackets for the ambulances, and the nec-
essary accessories for diagnosing and treating illnesses in the field.  The cost per monitor is 
estimated at $30,000 with an additional $5,500 for needed accessories, bringing the total 
project cost to $65,500. 
 
 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (DPS)  65,500        65,500 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $  65,600          65,500 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

ALS Defibrillators | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  N/A 

Engineering/Design:  N/A 
Purchase/Construction:  FY2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0 

 Machinery and Equipment 65,500 

 Construction Services 0  

 Subtotal 65,500 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          65,500  

Packet Page 40



Project Description:  This project will construct a live fire training facility and provide resi-
dential-like design with a burn room, interior stairs to multiple floors, interior fixed ladder, 
roof-mounted chop-out curbs, and parapet roof guard with chain opening.  This allows for 
multiple training exercises including hose advancement, fire attack, search & rescue, rappel-
ling, laddering, confined space, and high-angle rescue operations.  The facility may also be 
used for police use-of-force training exercises, as well as for confined space training. No such 
facility exists for public or private sector organizations in the City of Unalaska. 
 
Project Need:   Alaska firefighter certification require live fire training to ensure experience 
fighting fires with significant heat and smoke in limited or zero visibility environments. An 
uncertified volunteer or paid firefighter can respond to a fire, but live fire training and certifi-
cation ensures that they are prepared to help avoid panic in real situations.  No such live fire 
facility exists in Unalaska. Currently, firefighters travel off-island for training at a cost of ap-
proximately $3,000 each. Training time is 1-2 weeks and volunteers must take time off from 
work and/or family commitments in order to attend. The proposed facility can be modified 
for use by the police department to practice active shooter or other use-of-force situations, 
and can also be used as a confined space rescue training facility by other City departments or 
private industry. Additionally, this facility could be used as a regional training center for oth-
er Aleutian Communities.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  at present, only a 
concept plan exists, shown on the right side of this page. A location has not been selected 
but options include City-owned, leased, or purchased land.  building  and utility permits will 
be required.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:   All monies will 
come from the general fund.  Cost quote 
for facility in 2018 dollars is $255,000 plus 
$85,000 shipping.  Land purchase would 
require additional funding. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (DPS)  12,000 150,000 464,627     626,627  

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $  12,000 150,000 464,627     626,627  

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Fire Training Facility | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2019 

Engineering/Design:  FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Scoping, site selection, facility design 12,000 

 Land acquisition (purchase/lease TBD) 150,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of 13,100 

 Construction (in 2018 dollars plus 3% 371,527 

 Machinery & Equipment 0        

 Subtotal 533,527         

 Contingency 15% of Subtotal 80,000 

    Total $ 626,627 

Packet Page 41



Project Description:  An independent assessment of the city’s oldest building, public safety (1987)  
with the following goals and objectives: 
1. Analyze comprehensive space needs for current/future program requirements  
2. identify short-comings of the existing facility to meet those requirements.   
3. Analyze building for building codes, conditions, and expansion opportunities 
4. Provide a schematics for building expansion or new construction that meets DPS program re-

quirements and will serve the City of Unalaska for the next 50 years. 
5. Identify potential sites suitable for consideration for a new DPS complex in Unalaska . 
 
Project Need:   Presently, the Department of Public Safety (DPS) structure is unable to safely serve as 
a modern day Public Safety Complex.  The physical structure does not support all the operational 
needs of the department.  Existing facility issues include but are not limited to: 

 Crowded dispatch area provides little security from the public lobby, creating a safety and confi-
dentiality issue.  The lobby has seating space for only two people. 

 Inadequate staff support space, undersized staff offices with little privacy; limited interview and 
observation space; and no locker rooms for uniform changes, post-exposure decontamination. 

 Building access restrictions that are required for Police operations constrain volunteer fire-
fighter use and activities. 

 Detainee entrance is a narrow passage to parking area; emergency responses delayed if prison-
ers are being unloaded. Undersized booking area crowded and potentially hazardous for staff 
with unruly prisoners. Evidence drop-off/storage area is remote resulting in chain of custody and 
security issues. 

 Fire apparatus garage houses EMS supplies, turnout gear, air compressor and gym due to lack of 
space and creates potential contamination from the garage fumes. 

 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  FY19 includes funding for a 
building assessment and a functional assessment of the needs of each Division (Fire, Police, Correc-
tions, Emergency Preparedness, Animal Control, and Dis-
patch). 
  
Cost & Financing Data:   Budgetary estimate for the as-
sessment provided  by an architect who has performed 
other assessments. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (DPS)  100,000 TBD TBD      100,000 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $  100,000 TBD  TBD      100,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

DPS Bldg. Assessment | General 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2019 

Engineering/Design:  FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering 20% Const. TBD 

 Other Professional Services 100,000 

 Construction Services TBD 

 Subtotal 100,000 

 Contingency 30% TBD 

 Total $ 100,000 

Packet Page 42



Project Description: Since the current facility was designed in 1996, we have seen 
changes in technology, in the community, and in library use. Also, the library’s collections 
and services have expanded. Consequently, the facility’s design and layout are no longer 
meeting the changing needs of the community.  
 
In FY18, the Foraker Group accepted this project into a Pre-Development Program whose 
services have been funded by the Rasmuson Foundation at no cost to the city. During the 
Pre-Development phase, an architect hired by the Foraker Group visited Unalaska in Au-
gust and November 2017 to get input from staff, youth, and the public. In February 2018, 
he will provide concept designs and a final report to City Council. 
 
Project Need:  This project will increase the efficiency and service delivery life of the Una-
laska Public Library. The current facility falls short in the following areas: 

 Space and services for children and teens 

 Meeting and program space 

 Quiet seating and reading space 

 Room for growing library collections 
 
Cost & Financing Data:  The current project cost estimate is an Order of Magnitude cost 
based on conceptual designs created during Pre-Development by ECI Alaska Architecture. 
Staff will also plan to seek Rasmuson grant funding during FY19. 
 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (PCR—Library) 42,500 357,500 4,200,000    4,600,000 

1% Sales Tax            

Grant            

Proprietary Fund             

TOTALS $ 42,500 357,500 4,200,000    4,600,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering & Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Unalaska Public Library Improvements| General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019-2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020-2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 317,500 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 300,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 3,000,000  

 Subtotal 3,617,500 

 Contingency 30% Construction & Engineering 982,500 

 Total $          4,600,000 

Packet Page 43



Project Description:  This project removes shingles, roof boards, damaged insulation, 
installs framing for eave soffit ventilation/increased depth for insulation, installs insulation 
to R-30, installs new roof boards, reroofs the building, paints the new eaves and trim. 
 

Project Need:  The facility lacks proper insulation and ventilation below the roofing. It 
causes snow melt on the roof to run down to the eave and freezes where the walls and 
roof join together where there is less heat loss at that part of the roof structure. As ice 
dams grow larger, the water from the melting snows backs up and leaks between wood 
shingles into the building causing water damage. In FY08, metal flashing was installed on 
the eaves over the electric cable system to heat the flashing. The facility’s life will be ex-
tended by eliminating further water damage to the structural components below the roof. 
The new roof will protect the facility for at least another 30 years if no other catastrophe 
occurs. 
 
Maintenance History:  Maintenance from 1940 to 1996 is largely undocumented. Work 
prior to 1996 adapted the structure to new uses as needs evolved.   Past work includes: 
exterior painting, interior renovations, flooring, new shingles in 1995, boiler and fuel tank 
in 1998.  As part of the DPW-Facilities Maintenance budget, we will replace the metal 
flashing and heat trace on the eave as an interim measure when the present system fails. 
 

Cost Estimate:   Cost assumptions conducted in-house.  Funding requested for Engineer-
ing design in FY21.  From that design, an engineers cost estimate will be provided. 
 

  

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (Public Works & PCR)    70,000 490,000   560,000   

1% Sales Tax              

Grant               

Proprietary Fund               

TOTALS $     70,000 490,000   560,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering and Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

  
 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2021 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2022 

Burma Road Chapel Roof Ventilation Upgrades | General Fund 

Cost Assumptions:  

 Engineering Design Services 70,000  

 Other Professional Services (Architect) 10,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services Estimate 350,000  

 Subtotal 430,000  

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 130,000  

 Total $ 560,000  

Packet Page 44



Project Description:  This project will construct drainage, utilities, and pavement out 
Captains Bay Road to the vicinity of the North Pacific Fuel operations (former Crowley 
dock). This will involve approximately 2 miles of drainage improvements from Airport 
Beach Road to North Pacific Fuel (NPF), 1 mile of paving from Airport Beach Road to 
Westward, and 1 mile of water/sewer/electric utility extensions from Westward to 
NPF. For the electric utility, this will be an extension of the FY17 project to upgrade 
electric service to Westward.  
 
Project Need:  Captains Bay Road serves as a primary transportation route for West-
ward Seafoods, North Pacific Fuel, Northland Services, Offshore Systems Inc., and sev-
eral smaller businesses as well as residential homes. The section of road making up this 
project is a high traffic area of heavy vehicles which are used by the fishing and support 
industries which are vital to the community’s economic welfare.  In September 2011 
residents and industry representatives discussed the hazards at public meetings about 
the Road Improvement Master Plan.  Although the road’s high crown is needed for 
adequate drainage, it also creates a safety hazard for the large trucks and school buses 
traveling the road.  The public expressed strong support for improvements to Captains 
Bay Road. The area of Captains Bay Road is also an area of potential growth in the 
community as identified in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Cost and Maintenance: Drainage and paving estimates are based on the Ballyhoo 
Road Drainage & Electrical Upgrades Project. The utility expansion estimate is based on 
the Henry Swanson Drive Road & Utilities Project’s utility construction costs, and other 
recent materials and equipment costs. These are still very rough estimates that will be 
refined as the project commencement approaches. Costs are split between the Gen-
eral Fund for the paving and 
drainage portion and the 
three utility funds based on 
the costs for each of those 
portions. 
 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund     750,000 11,400,000  12,150,000 

Proprietary Fund (Electric-Distribution)      250,000 5,300,000  5,550,000 

Proprietary Fund (Water)     250,000 2,900,000  3,150,000 

Proprietary Fund (Wastewater)      250,000 3,200,000  3,450,000 

TOTALS $      1,500,000 22,800,000  24,300,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering and Construction Services 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Captains Bay Road & Utility Improvements| General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2021 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2022 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 2,500,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 300,000  

 Machinery and Equipment TBD 

 Construction Services 16,000,000  

 Subtotal 18,800,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 5,500,000 

 Total $          24,300,000  

Packet Page 45



Project Description:  The Henry Swanson House Improvement Project includes the 
rehabilitation, reuse, and recognition of the historical importance of the Henry Swanson 
House. 
 
Project Need:  As required per City Code, the Historic Preservation Commission pro-
duced an Inventory of Historic Sites in 2003. This survey of historic properties in our 
community included the Henry Swanson House. The Alaska Heritage Resource Survey 
documentation completed as a part of the survey provides a detailed overview of the 
structure, architecture, and historical relevance.  The Unalaska Comprehensive Plan calls 
for the Preservation Commission to continue to place interpretive markers at significant 
historic sites within the City limits and to advocate for cost effective preservation, reha-
bilitation, and adaptive reuse of Unalaska’s historic buildings. 
 
Project Plan and Status:  The DPW Facilities Maintenance Division inspected the build-
ing in the fall of 2017 and found the structure solid but in need of much TLC.  The metal 
roof has helped keep the overall structure in fair and salvageable condition. Small in-
spection holes were cut into the floor, walls, and ceiling to inspect the inner structure 
and it was found to be in good condition.  Tests for 36 different strains of mold were 
conducted by an independent lab with results showing little to no evidence of mold.  
DPW will solicit bids from local contractors to raise the structure approximately 2’ off the 
ground and bring electrical up to code.  DPW Facilities Maintenance will repair and paint 
the interior, inspect/repair electrical wiring, and restore heat via the existing Toyo stove 
to control humidity.  Once the Henry Swanson House is returned to useable condition, a 
written report with pictures providing the history of the house will be made available to 
assist Council in making a decision about the future use of the historic home. 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund (Planning)   50,000    50,000 

1% Sales Tax          

Grant          

Proprietary Fund           

TOTALS $   50,000    50,000 

Requested Funds: Pre-Design  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Henry Swanson House Site Improvements | General Fund 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2021 

Engineering/Design: TBD 
Purchase/Construction: TBD 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 3,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 3,500  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 40,000  

 Subtotal 46,500 

 Contingency 3,500 

 Total $          50,000  

Packet Page 46



Project Description: This project consists of the inspection, major maintenance, and rebuilds 
of the four primary Generator sets in the Unalaska Powerhouse.  The maintenance schedule for 
the Generator Sets at the Unalaska Powerhouse is determined by engine hours. Engine inspec-
tions are also conducted by the manufacturer’s mechanics to determine if engine rebuilds are 
needed according to the hourly schedule or  if they can be prolonged.  
 
Project Need:  These Generator Set rebuilds are needed to maintain our equipment  and the 
reliability of our electrical production. The replacement costs are approximately $7 million for 
the Wartsilla Gensets and $5 million for the C280 Caterpillars. Maintaining the City’s invest-
ment is an important priority. Also, our Certificate of Fitness from Alaska Energy Authority 
states that we must keep all electrical generating equipment in good running condition.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  Due to the cost of 
the engine rebuilds, it has been determined that the cost will be capitalized.  
 
Cost & Financing Data:  Costs for the Generator Sets rebuilds can fluctuate greatly according 
to what is determined by the maintenance inspections. Costs for these rebuilds has been deter-
mined by past rebuild costs according to the worst case scenario. A 2% inflation rate has been 
added each year.  Money that is not used for rebuilds by the end of the fiscal year, will be re-
turned to the proprietary fund.  
 

 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                   

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Electric-Production)  1,267,306 1,292,652 1,318,505 1,344,875 1,371,772 6,595,110 

TOTALS $  1,267,306 1,292,652 1,318,505 1,344,875 1,371,772 6,595,110 

Requested Funds:  

 

FY19-23 CMMP 
Generator Sets Rebuild | Electric Production 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: N/A 
Purchase/Construction: Annual 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 207,812  

 Machinery and Equipment 786,212 

 Construction Services 0 

 Subtotal 994,084 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 273,222 

 Total $          1,267,306  

Packet Page 47



Project Description:  This initial phase of the project for Wind Energy requires funds to aid in 
studies and research that will further define the scope of the project and determine the viabil-
ity of wind energy in Unalaska. 
 
Project Need:  The community of Unalaska continues to bring forward the need to develop 
alternative energy capabilities.  If Wind Energy is determined to be cost effective then it will be 
a great way to increase power generated in an environmentally friendly method. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements): The first step in 
determining if wind can be a viable resource to produce electricity on the island is to perform 
wind studies.  Results will determine whether there are any geographic areas that meet the 
wind standards for sustainable wind energy production.  In concert with the studies, a determi-
nation needs to be made on whether the city would be able to obtain all of the proper permits 
from the various governmental agencies.  The first phase of the wind studies is underway and 
will be completed in FY2019. Results will identify where to install MET towers to gather wind 
data for 12-18 months.  Further scoping  for this project will be completed when the first phase 
study is complete. 
 
Cost & Financing Data:  Cost and financing are undermined for the overall project.  We esti-
mate the cost of the study at $200,000 but will need to refine that cost as we move forward in 
the process. This project was funded in FY2018 in the amount of $200,000. Further costs will be 
updated when the scope of work is updated. 
 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund 200,000 TBD  TBD TBD TBD TBD 200,000 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Electric-Production)              

TOTALS $ 200,000          TBD  TBD TBD TBD TBD 200,000         

Requested Funds:  Funds to be used to aid in studies and research to refine the concept of the project. 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Wind Energy| Electric Production 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2022 

 

Cost Assumptions 
Engineering Cost 20% of Const.  

Other Professional Services $ 200,000 

Machinery and Equipment  

Construction Services  

Subtotal $ 200,000 

Contingency 30%  

Total $ 200,000 

Packet Page 48



Project Description: Replace the aging 130 volt DC battery system and charger. Bring system 
up to current safety codes    
 
Project Need:  These 60 batteries feed electricity to the existing switch gear, and emergency 
equipment in the event of a power outage. They also feed the main electrical breakers during 
normal run times. The batteries and charger life expectancy is 25 years but have been in service 
for 30 years, the reliability of this system is questionable. This antiquated system is out of com-
pliance with present safety is regulation. With this project, we will upgrade the system to meet 
regulations and tie this system together with the battery system in the new power plant, which 
will create redundancy in the system, increasing our reliability and safety to the community. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):   
 
Cost & Financing Data:  Expected life is 25 years. The facility will be used far into the future at 
least 25 years. We currently have 5 pieces of equipment in the building that produce electricity 
as well as our fuel supply and engine cooling and storage. This project will be funded using the 
Electric Proprietary Funds. 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                             

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Electric-Production) 263,070 250,000     513,070 

TOTALS $ 263,070 250,000     513,070 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Old Power House Batteries | Elec. Production 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2018 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 40,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0  

 Machinery and Equipment 250,000 

 Construction Services 173,070  

 Subtotal 413,070 

 Contingency 12% of Subtotal 50,000 

 Total $ 513,070  

Packet Page 49



Project Description:  This nomination is for the purchase, installation and commission-
ing of a 4th ElectraTherm Organic Rankine Cycle heat recovery unit to be installed in the 
old powerhouse facility.    
 
Project Need:  The addition of the 4th unit increases the cooling capacity of the existing 
power production facility, which adds redundancy to the community’s existing facilities, 
reduces the amount of fuel required to produce energy, reduces pollution, and decreases 
the amount of additional energy required to run the existing facilities. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  To minimize 
the design we recommend the sole source to Electrical Power Systems (EPS) as the Me-
chanical and Electrical installer for those portions of this project. EPS/MBIS was the princi-
pal designer, mechanical installer, electrical installer, and SCADA integrator for the instal-
lation of the original 3 ORC units.  As the Engineer of Record, EPS has existing knowledge 
of the electrical production facility and its subsystems, and they have a proven track rec-
ord of successful and well-implemented Design Build projects for the Electrical Utility. 
The design from the first three ORCs will be used for this project. The piping, electrical 
race ways, and  concrete slab was installed for the fourth unit during the construction of 
the first three units.     
 
Cost & Financing Data:  The monies for this project will come from the Electrical propri-
etary Fund.  Cost were determined from  quotes from Electratherm and Electrical Power 
Systems. 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Electric-Production)    553,103     553,103 

TOTALS $    553,103     553,103 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

4th Waste Heat Recovery Unit| Electric Production 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2021 

Engineering/Design: FY 2021 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2021 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0  

 Machinery and Equipment 275,735 

 Construction Services 149,739  

 Subtotal 425,474 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 127,629 

 Total $          553,103  

Packet Page 50



Project Description: Use CIPP Process to Slip line 940 ft. of sewer pipe in East Point  
Rd. and Delta Way Rd.  
 
Project Need:  Prevent future Bunker C oil infiltration into pipe line and lift station 3. 
 
Development Plan:  This plan was originally developed in FY 18  as an emergency pro-
ject to repair an oil leak into one section of pipeline that emptied into Lift Station 3.  Slip 
lining was the method chosen as the most cost effective repair. Staff concluded that the 
remainder of the piping system from the old Powerhouse to Lift Station 3 had been  
soaking in oil for 30 years and was also susceptible to leakage. Due to budget constraints 
the decision was made to repair only the leaking section in FY18 and slip line the remain-
ing pipe in FY19. Northern Alaska Contractors were sole sourced for the slip lining re-
pairs and have provided a quote for both sections . 
 
Cost & Financing Data:  Money for this project will come from the Wastewater Propri-
etary Fund. $415,000 emergency funding was secured in FY2018 from Council. 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund 415,000               415,000   

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Wastewater)  492,400         492,400 

TOTALS $ 415,000  492,400            807,400     

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Delta Way / East Point Sewer Repair |Wastewater 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2018 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 50,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0  

 Machinery and Equipment 400,000 

 Construction Services 407,400  

 Subtotal 807,400 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          807,400 

Packet Page 51



Project Description: Replacement of corroded discharge pipes, check valves, and plug 
valves at each lift station and install a zinc anode to prevent further corrosion.   
 
Project Need:  Each lift station contains two pumps. Each pump has an individual 4” 
discharge line including a check valve and plug valve all located inside the lift station. The 
discharge piping and valves at lift stations 2 & 5 have been exposed to an extremely 
harsh environment for over 30 years and 28 years respectively. It has been determined 
through routine maintenance that corrosion problems have become evident that could 
lead to pump shut downs or prolonged pump runs due to pipe leaks or valve failures. 
The discharge pipes are pressurized lines that can blow out in badly corroded areas caus-
ing pumps to run too long and possibly overheat and fail. 
 
Development Plan:  The existing ductile iron piping in both stations has lasted 30 years 
with no corrosion control. New ductile iron piping and a sacrificial zinc anode should 
increase the life of the discharge piping to at least 40 years.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:  Funding for this project will come from the wastewater propri-
etary funds.   
 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                    

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Wastewater) 122,250 300,000        422,250 

TOTALS $ 122,250 300,000       422,250 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Lift Station 2 & 5 Discharge Pipe | Wastewater  

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 20,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0 

 Machinery and Equipment 230,000 

 Construction Services 122,250  

 Subtotal 372,250 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 50,000 

 Total $          422,250 

Packet Page 52



Project Description:  This project consists of installing a water booster station on General Hill 
at approximately 100 feet of elevation.  It will include underground plumbing, a small building, 
two pumps with controls, and plumbing to connect a fire engine.   
 
Project Need:  This project will increase water service pressure in the upper elevations of the 
hill.  It will greatly reduce the potential for contamination of the water system due to backflow, 
and decrease the potential for customers to lose water service due to low pressure. 
Water pressure at the top of General Hill does not currently meet the minimum industry stand-
ard of 40 psi or a minimum sustainable pressure of 20 psi.  Measured residual pressures range 
from 0 to 26 psi at the uppermost fire hydrant.  This is not simply an inconvenience to the high-
est General Hill customers, but it is a health and safety issue for all water utility customers.  
These low water pressures create a high potential for contamination of the water system 
caused by backflow.   This is of special concern during water main breaks and fires.   
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  This  project will 
require a consultant for design and engineering to obtain Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation (ADEC) approval.  A contractor will be needed for construction.  Land purchase 
will also be required.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:  This project will be funded by the Water Proprietary fund. Costs are 
rough estimates, but staff will refine cost estimates prior to FY18 budget submittal. 
 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                                    

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Water) 21,600 200,000 350,000       571,600  

TOTALS $ 21,600 200,000 350,000       571,600  

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

General Hill Water Booster Pump | Water 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions 
Engineering Cost 20% of Const. 45,000  

Other Professional Services 25,000  

Land Acquisition 75,000  

Machinery and Equipment 200,000  

Construction Services 126,000  

Subtotal 396,000  

Contingency 30% 175,600  

Total $ 571,600  

Packet Page 53



Project Description: This project will paint and perform other maintenance work to 
the inside of the Pyramid CT Tank in two phases.   
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements): Con-
structed in 1993, Pyramid CT Tank was and has been drained every 3-5 years for 
cleaning and/or inspection. The tank has never been completely de-watered because 
the time, available equipment, and tank configuration makes it impractical to per-
form a complete tank de-watering. Anodes were added in 2004 to help slow the rate 
of corrosion to the inside of the tank. Maintenance costs average about $25,000-
$30,000 annually. The ceiling coatings are deteriorating per predicted life spans of 20
-25 years. Small sections of coatings are beginning to drop into the water. The floor 
has pitting problems and needs immediate attention. Some locations have pitting in 
excess of ½ of the steel plate thickness meaning the tank floor will likely be leaking in 
2-3 years. In 5-7 years, large sections of ceiling coatings will be dropping into the wa-
ter and can either plug the tank discharge holes or break up and travel into custom-
ers’ services. Shortly after, structural damage will occur. With proper maintenance 
this tank can stay in good service for many years. Painting, is a fraction of a new 
tank’s cost. However, a new CT Tank may be the best option to provide for the ability 
to maintain this existing CT Tank. Relationship to Other Projects:  Building a sec-
ond CT Tank was the designed and intended path to take when the original CT Tank 
was built. This provides redundancy required in the treatment process to maintain 
Filtration Avoidance status. It also directly addresses the operational function issues 
associated with maintaining each tank. Permitting: Appropriate permits will be se-
cured from the ADEC for all work. 
  
Cost & Financing 
Data:  The monies 
for this project will 
come from the 
Water Proprietary 
Fund. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund            

1% Sales Tax            

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Water)   100,000 953,000          1,053,000 

TOTALS $   100,000 953,000          1,053,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering , Construction , Travel, Advertising, Contingency, Inspection 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

CT Tank Interior Maintenance & Painting | Water 

Location Map 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 100,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0 

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 953,000  

 Subtotal 1,053,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          1,053,000  

Packet Page 54



 Project Description:  Constructing a second Chlorine Contact Tank (CT Tank) next to the 
existing CT Tank to provide clear water storage and enable interior maintenance to be done 
on either tank regardless of process seasons or weather.  The project requires installing 
about 200 ft. of 16” DI water main, 200 ft. of 8” DI drain line, and 100 ft. each of 1” sample 
line and control wiring. 
 
Project Need:  Additional storage provided by this tank will help to address many issues 
identified in the 2004 Water Master Plan.  Even in the Water Distribution System’s current 
configuration, this new tank will provide an additional 960,000 gallons of the additional 4 
MG of finished water storage recommended in the Master Plan.  When planned future de-
velopment is completed on Captain’s Bay Road, over 2.2 MG of water storage will be avail-
able at the maximum Pyramid Water Treatment Plant capacity of 9 MGD.  The additional 
storage will provide a much needed buffer, allowing time to troubleshoot and repair prob-
lems in the event of an equipment failure or system malfunction.  It will reduce the likeli-
hood of water shortages and/or outages during the Processing seasons.   
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  Much of the 
pre-design work for this job was completed with the design of the original CT Tank.  Very 
little piping will be required to connect the new CT Tank to the Water Distribution system.  
Space (in the red circle) has been maintained for the new tank between the existing tank 
and the new Pyramid Water Treatment Plant. A "Certificate to Construct" and a "Certificate 
to Operate" are required from ADEC, obtained through application by the designing engi-
neer. 
 
Cost & Financing Data:  
This project will financed 
through the Water Proprie-
tary Fund. And grant funding 
from the State of Alaska.  

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund            

1% Sales Tax            

Grant       603,750 7,906,193  8,509,943 

Proprietary Fund (Water) 625,000      625,000 

TOTALS $ 625,000   603,750 7,906,193  9,134,943 

Requested Funds: Engineering Services, Construction Services, Contingency 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Pyramid Water Storage Tank | Water 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2021 

Engineering/Design: FY 2021 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2022 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 330,750 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 220,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 7,906,193  

 Subtotal 8,456,943 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 678,000 

 Total $          9,134,943  

Packet Page 55



Project Description: This project will be conducted at the Landfill Baler Building, built in 
1998. It will replace approximately 75% of the wall insulation, approximately 10% of the 
ceiling insulation, and install PVC Liner Panels over all of the building’s insulation to protect 
the insulation from birds. This project is intended to replace damaged insulation and de-
fend against future damage. 
 
 Project Purpose and Need: Our local bird population has torn out a great amount of the 
insulation in the walls and ceiling of the Landfill Baler Building. Attempts to persuade the 
birds to go elsewhere have been futile. In order to conserve fuel and reduce heating costs, 
it is necessary to replace the damaged insulation, and to cover the insulation with PVC 
panels to protect the City’s investment from the flying nuisances. The corrugated PVC Pan-
els will be tightly fitted and slick so birds cannot land or perch on it. This project is related 
to the stack replacement for boiler system. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  This project 
is being put on hold until a solution for our bird problem can be developed. 
Cost & Financing Data: Money for this project will come from the Solid waste Proprie-
tary Fund. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund            

1% Sales Tax            

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Solid Waste)    537,020      537,020 

TOTALS $   537,020    537,020 

Note: Requested funds are for inspection, contingency, construction and engineering and based on contractor estimates. 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Re-insulation of Baler Building | Solid Waste 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: N/A 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0  

 Machinery and Equipment 537,000 

 Construction Services 0  

 Subtotal 537,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          537,000  

Packet Page 56



Project Description:  This is a multi year project consisting of Feasibility, design, and construc-
tion, of a biological solids composting system at the Unalaska solid waste facility. The compost 
material involved includes wastewater sludge, food and fish waste, cardboard, and wood.  
Project Need:  Currently, biological solids and compostable material make up approximately 
40% of the Unalaska Solid Waste intake.  These bio solids consist of wastewater sludge, fish 
processor fish waste and food waste. Other compostable material consists of cardboard, paper, 
and wood. This waste substantially decreases the useful life of the Landfill cells and increases 
the organic load into the Leachate stream.  Since the influx of wastewater sludge into the land-
fill, the organic load to the leachate stream has increased to 720 pounds per day compared to 
126 pounds per day prior to the influx. This puts additional loading on the leachate system and 
has an ill effect on the wastewater plant process, which must use more chemicals and electrici-
ty to process it. All of this waste can be composted into usable class A soil. This soil can be used 
for cover material at the landfill or be sold to the public.  
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  
Feasibility: An internal feasibility has been completed by Deputy Director of Public Utilities. An 
external feasibility is scheduled for July 1, 2017 (FY2018). Design: Design is scheduled to begin 
on July 1, 2018 (FY2019). Construction: Construction will begin January 1, 2018 (FY2019).  Per-
mitting: Classifying the composted soil as a class A soil is scheduled to begin as soon as  the 
compost units are started up. 
Cost & Financing Data:  The cost estimates for this project are derived from Kodiak’s com-
posting project and estimates are very rough. Funds for the Feasibility study and design will 
come from the Proprietary Fund. The construction is depicted as coming from the General Fund 
at this time. If the Solid Waste Proprietary Fund  has the monetary reserve to pay for the con-
struction in the future, then they will.  
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund   725,000      725,000       

1% Sales Tax             

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Solid Waste) 105,000          105,000 

TOTALS $ 105,000  725,000       830,000      

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Composting| Solid Waste 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2018 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 100,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 30,000  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 700,000  

 Subtotal 830,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          830,000  

Packet Page 57



Project Description:  This project will remove material from the channel bar that crosses 
the entrance of lliuliuk Bay before vessels can enter Dutch Harbor. 
  
Project Need:  Due to a bar that crosses the entrance channel vessels entering the port are 
limited by their draft rather than their need for services the community can provide. Numer-
ous vessels passing the community cannot enter our port. This project will also reduce de-
layed arrival and departure of current vessels entering into to Dutch Harbor due to storm 
surge and swell in the channel; especially any northerly wind the sea height can cause vessels 
to pitch resulting in contact with the sea floor. Depending upon sea conditions the depth 
under keel for vessels currently utilizing the port can be as little as one meter according to 
the Alaska Marine Pilots. This represents both a safety concern as well as an economic con-
straint upon the community. Dredging the entrance channel to a sufficient depth and width 
would alleviate this problem. The dredging will increase the depth of water to accommodate 
the draft of large vessels transiting the channel and utilizing the Unalaska Marine Center and 
facilities inside of Dutch Harbor. The current estimate to be removed is 23,400 CY.   
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  The City will 
work with the Corps of Engineers to help fund, design, construct, and maintain this project. 
The first step in the process is conducting the biological assessments, understand the impact 
of dredging to beachfronts inside of the harbor, and working on application with the Corps of 
Engineers to partner for the dredging. The Corps of Engineers will begin the study phase of 
this project in FY17.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:   The overall cost is to be evaluated. The immediate funding request 
is for feasibility and biological information required for the Corps of Engineers applications. 
This project is a General Fund project.  
We are moving all unencumbered pro-
prietary funds back to Ports to use for 
more pressing projects. There is an ex-
isting 1.5 million dollars appropriated, 
the project requests an additional 3.5 
million to complete the initial three-
year biological and feasibility studies. 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund 1,500,000    5,000,000      6,500,000 

1% Sales Tax             

Grant             

Proprietary Fund  (Ports)              

TOTALS $ 1,500,000  5,000,000    6,500,000 

Notes:  Funding related to professional services costs. 

FY19-23 CMMP 

  

Entrance Channel Dredging | Ports 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: FY 2016 

Engineering/Design: FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions 
Engineering Cost 20% of Const. 0  

Other Professional Services 5,000,000  

Machinery and Equipment 0  

Construction Services 0  

Subtotal 5,000,000  

Contingency 30% 0  

Total $ 5,000,000  

Packet Page 58



Project Description:  This project includes the engineering, permitting, and dredging at the 
faces of the Light Cargo Dock and the Unalaska Marine Center positions 1-7. The completion of 
this dredging will enhance current and future operations by creating useable industrial dock 
face that is designed for vessels in varying lengths and tonnage. 
 
Project Need:  This project is proposed to compliment other pending capital projects in the 
Port. Many of the vessels currently calling the Port must adjust ballast to cross the bar and 
dock inside Dutch Harbor at the UMC & LCD. With the dredging of the entrance channel larger 
vessels will be able to enter into Dutch Harbor. The depths at the Unalaska Marine Center vary 
from -32 ft. and -45 ft. at MLLW. Dredging at the face of the Unalaska Marine Center would 
create a constant -45ft from Positions 1-7. This will accommodate deeper draft vessels 
throughout the facility. This project is primarily to accommodate large class vessels. Dredging 
in front of the Light Cargo Dock will also make this dock more accessible for current customers. 
Vessels using the LCD that draw more than 22ft. must place another vessel between the dock 
face and their vessel in order to get enough water under keel clearance. We are proposing that 
in concert with the dredging at the UMC and other private dredging projects, we also dredge in 
front of the LCD. The LCD handles some of the regular customers using the Unalaska Marine 
Center such as the bulk cargo carriers and catcher/processors.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements): The estimates for 
dredging of the Light Cargo Dock include 6000 CY of dredging and 3100 CY of shot rock slope 
protection. Dredging at UMC estimated to relocate 6000 CY of dredging material and will re-
quire approximately 1200 CY of shot rock slope protection. There will be a fee for professional 
services to secure potential additional permits through the USACOE, NOAA, and other agencies 
guaranteeing that we are in compliance with regulations and avoiding additional costs due to 
fines. 
 
Cost & Financing Data:   
This project will be funded 
through the Ports Proprietary 
Fund.  This is a rough cost 
estimate. A detailed cost 
breakout will be available 
with the next CMMP Sub-
mittal. 
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund        

1% Sales Tax        

Grant         

Proprietary Fund  (Ports)  109,650  1,932,000       2,041,650 

TOTALS $ 109,650  1,932,000      2,041,650 

Notes:  Funding related to professional services, construction, contingency and inspection.  

FY19-23 CMMP 

  

LCD & UMC Dredging | Ports 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: July 2016– July 2017 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2020 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction TBD 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const TBD  

 Machinery and Equipment 2,041,650 

 Construction Services TBD  

 Subtotal 2,041,650 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          2,041,650  

Packet Page 59



Project Description:   This project is an additional phase to the Robert Storrs Float improve-
ment project. It will remove the existing A and B Floats at the Harbor and reconfigure the Harbor 
to accommodate the new float system.   
 
Project Need:  This project would include replacing the deteriorated floats and reconfiguring the 
floats and fingers of A and B Floats to include updated electrical systems, lighting, fire suppres-
sion, year-round utilities, and an ADA-required gangway. Based on current engineer concepts, a 
reconfiguration of A and B Floats will at minimum create 30 additional slips. Reconfiguration will 
also allow for development of the uplands for a certain amount of required parking and a public 
restroom. Because the current floats were relocated in the 80’s, they were arranged in the har-
bor based on the materials at hand and not with consideration to the best use of the basin. In 
order to accommodate the vessel demand at the Robert Storrs Harbor, reconfiguration of the 
floats would allow for better use of the basin based on bathymetry and navigational approaches 
and also allow for additional vessel slips, with minimal fill and no dredging. It will add a significant 
number of slips for vessels 60’ and under. This is the final phase of the Robert Storrs Float Re-
placement Project. C Float was completed in FY16.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements): Preliminary concept 
drawings have been completed (see right). There will be a fee for professional services to secure 
potential additional permits through the USACOE, NOAA, and other agencies guaranteeing that 
we are in compliance with regulations and avoiding additional costs due to fines. All Utilities will 
be required as part of the project.  
 
Cost & Financing Data:   In FY17 we reduced funding set aside for this project to make money 
available for other more urgent Ports projects. The current estimates place this project at ap-
proximately 9.5 million dollars, based on engineers estimates for in kind replacement. We are 
eligible to apply for a 50% grant 
through the Alaska Department 
of Transportation and Public Fa-
cilities. 50% of the funding for 
this is estimated to come out of 
the Port Net Assets. A contingen-
cy is included in the estimate. A 
detailed cost breakout will be 
available with the next CMMP 
Submittal. 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund             

1% Sales Tax             

Grant      3,405,000   3,405,000 

Proprietary Fund  (Ports)  50,000   600,000 6,575,000   7,225,000 

TOTALS $ 50,000   600,000 9,980,000   10,630,000 

Requested Funds:  Engineering, Construction, Contingency, Inspection |Grant Funds:  Possible ADOT & PF Grant 

FY19-23 CMMP 

  

Robert Storrs Small Boat Harbor Improvements (A&B Floats) | Ports 

Existing Condition (left)  

 Side Tie: 643 feet 

 Slips: 6  - 42 foot  &  6  - 60 

Proposed Concept (right)  

 Side Tie: 218 feet 

 Slips: 22—26 foot, 13  - 32 foot, & 

20 - 42 foot  

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: February 2014 – July 2014 

Engineering/Design: January 2019—July 2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0 

 Machinery and Equipment 9,500,000 

 Construction Services 0 

 Subtotal 9,500,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 1,130,000 

 Total $          10,630,000 

Packet Page 60



Project Description:   
United States Coast Guard (USCG) Quarterdeck Shack Replacement  
 
Project Need:   
The city of Unalaska is contractually obligated to maintain and store a quarterdeck 
shack for the USCG, this maintenance nomination is for replacement of the original 
shack. It was blown  from the dock and into the water during 125 mph winds and is 
beyond repair.  The quarterdeck shack was originally designed during the construc-
tion of positions 1 and 2 on the Unalaska marine center for the USCG. This quarter-
deck shack has been in place since 2002 and was in excellent condition.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  
No permits are required for this and the original design is being reused for the re-
placement quarterdeck shack.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:   
This will be paid for out of the port proprietary fund and will be based on the best 
quote from local contractors.  The $25,000 includes a contingency for inspection 
and for construction. A detailed cost breakout will be available with the next CMMP 
Submittal. 
 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund        

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Ports & Harbors)  25,000         25,000 

TOTALS $  25,000     25,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 
USCG Quarter Deck Building Replacement| Ports & Harbors 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: N/A 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 0 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 0  

 Machinery and Equipment TBD 

 Construction Services TBD  

 Subtotal 25,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 0 

 Total $          25,000  

Packet Page 61



Project Description:  

This project will replace the unreliable wireless communication line at the Unalaska Marine 

Center (UMC) Harbor Office with hard-wired direct connectivity from the Harbor Office to the 

Powerhouse.  From the Powerhouse, the Harbor Office will have direct connectivity to City 

Hall, DPS, the rest of Unalaska, and the outside world.   This will provide seamless transmis-

sion of phone calls and data by bypassing multiple wireless connections. 

Project Need:   

Because of the Port location, the Harbor Office does not have a direct line of sight to the Hay-

stack Communication Facility.  As a result, multiple wireless jumps are required in order to 

achieve communication but that results in a weak connection subject to frequent interrup-

tions.  The communication signal is often interrupted by UMC vessel traffic or weather.  The 

direct hard-wired line will reduce the amount of disconnections the Harbor Office experienc-

es with the current City intranet and phone system.  This is particularly critical during times of 

emergency response. 

Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  

Preliminary engineering is complete.  Final design in FY19 with construction in FY19-20 

Cost & Financing Data:  

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                            

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Ports & Harbors)  152,000         152,000 

TOTALS $  152,000         152,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Harbor Office Communication Line| Ports 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019-2020 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions:  

 Engineering, Design, Const Admin 9,500  

 Other Professional Services (Survey) 2,500  

 Construction Services 95,000  

 Machinery & Equipment 10,000  

 Subtotal 117,000  

 Contingency 30% 35,000  

 Total $ 152,000  

Packet Page 62



Project Description: This project is located on the south end of the Position 7 
at the Unalaska Marine Center on Ballyhoo Road. The proposed site is an exten-
sion to the uplands and is strictly fill.  Upon completion provides an additional 
1.9 acres of leasable uplands. 
  
Project Need:  This project will  provide a much needed addition to the existing 
operational uplands at the Unalaska Marine Center.  It was identified as an eco-
nomic benefit during the Design process for the Unalaska marine center expan-
sion and replacement project . 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  
This extension is permitted through the USACE and has gone through the appro-
priate NEPA Reviews. The design is complete and all critical pieces are in place to 
move forward with the completion of this fill work.   
 
Cost & Financing Data:  This project is to be funded out of the Port Proprietary 
Fund and is estimated to have return on investment of 10 years or less. This pro-
ject was an additive alternative to the original UMC project but was removed 
from the project. The leftover from the UMC contingency budget is expected to 
cover the projected cost of the laydown area. 
  
 

 R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund        

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Ports & Harbors)  5,400,000         5,400,000 

TOTALS $  5,400,000        5,400,000 

Requested Funds:  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

UMC Laydown Area| Ports & Harbors 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: N/A 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Cost Assumptions:  

 Engineering CA Services  $        10,000  

 Other Professional Services  $          5,000  

 Construction Services  $   4,300,000  

 Subtotal  $   4,315,000  

 Contingency  $   1,085,000  

 TOTAL  $   5,400,000  

Packet Page 63



R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund                                 

1% Sales Tax              

Grant             

Proprietary Fund (Airport) 140,000   TBD                   TBD 

TOTALS $ 140,000      TBD                   TBD   

Requested Funds:  Engineering, Construction, Inspection, Contract Administration 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Airport Terminal Roof Replacement| Airport 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design:  FY 2018 

Engineering/Design:  FY 2018-2019 
Purchase/Construction:  FY 2020 

Insert Photo or 

Map here 

Project Description:   The Unalaska Airport Terminal Building has a one level roof with a 
raised clerestory, which is in need of replacement with a gable roof.   
 

Project Need:   The building is an approximately 16,200 SF facility with an Inverted Roof 
Membrane Assembly (IRMA) that slopes to internal roof drains. The design relies on insu-
lation that is placed on top of a waterproof membrane which covers the structural deck. 
Concrete pavers (ballast) placed over the entire roof hold down the insulation. The pavers 
deteriorate rapidly compared to the membrane and debris and organics accumulate in 
joints preventing water access to roof drains. Inspection of the membrane is complicated 
due to the difficulty in removing the pavers and insulation. Chronic leaks have been re-
ported at isolated areas during periods of high wind and rain. Two permeant under ceiling 
water catchment systems consisting of plastic, drain pan, hose, and 5 gallon buckets 
merely contain the leaks inside the building. Numerous attempts have been made over 
the years to repair the leaks which have all achieved limited success. An architectural/
engineering firm was hired in 2008 to design a repair which was then publicly bid and the 
repairs were made. This failed to preventing roof leaks.   
 

Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):   A new peaked ga-
ble roof with adequate pitch is in the concept stage.   
 

Cost & Financing Data:   Funding for an architectural/engineering firm to perform an on-
site inspection, evaluation, and produce plans, specifications, and bid package for a 
peaked gable roof 
design was publicly 
solicited with 5 pro-
posals received on 1-
31-18.  The budget-
ary estimate for the 
design services is 
estimated to be 
$140,000.  
 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 10,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 130,000 

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services TBD 

 Subtotal 140,000 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal Included 

 Total  140,000 

 Funds Appropriated in FY18  $     (140,000) 

 Total FY19 Request $ 0 

Packet Page 64



Project Description:   This project consists of the full renovation of both kitchens in both units (4 
kitchens total). The work will replace all cabinets, countertops, and flooring in both units of both 
duplexes, and may also include some plumbing work and fixtures and parts as necessary  
 
Project Need:  This project has been nominated due to the age and condition of the cabinets, 
countertops, and flooring in both units of both duplexes. The cabinets and countertops in the units 
are original, meaning they are 35 years old. Labor and maintenance costs are increasing. Over time, 
some cabinets doors have been replaced with plywood, and some hinges don’t hold well because 
the screw holes have been stripped. In addition, many drawers in all units do not function properly 
due to worn out or missing drawer guide parts and finding replacement parts has become quite 
difficult. The countertops have loose laminate as well as chips and burns, which are difficult to re-
pair and nearly impossible to match. The flooring was replaced in all of the units in 2000; however, 
these floor coverings now have tears, holes, and stains as a result of fifteen years of use since that 
installation was completed. If left in their current condition, employee tenants will have counter-
tops, cabinets, and flooring which will be difficult to operate, keep clean and are potentially hazard-
ous. Drawers and doors that will not open or slide properly could cause injury, cracked countertops 
can harbor dangerous bacteria, and irregular flooring surfaces are a trip hazard. These current is-
sues will remain and new issues will arise as the units age, requiring maintenance costs to increase. 
Through this project, the City will gain serviceable components while reducing maintenance costs. 
These kitchen renovations will act to retain or more likely increase the property’s value for years to 
come and increase desirability, which can be important for employee recruiting and retention. 
Maintenance History: From 1998 to 2013, various maintenance projects have taken place, includ-
ing roof replacement, grading and drainage, exterior painting (twice), deck replacement, carpet 
replacement, window replacement, and water service line replacement. These projects have to-
taled $250,100. 
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  Architect visited the 
site and has provided preliminary concept plans. 
 
Cost & Financing Data:  
Architect provided budgetary 
estimate as follows: 

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund 124,994 275,006        400,000 

1% Sales Tax            

Grant            

Proprietary Fund  (Housing)         

TOTALS $ 124,994 275,006       400,000 

Requested Funds: Engineering Services and Construction Services (Estimates based material and labor estimates from vendors in 2016 plus 3%  annual inflation adjustments) 

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

Lear Road Duplexes Kitchen & Bathroom Renovations| Housing 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2019 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2019 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction Included 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const Included  

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 296,000  

 Subtotal 296,000 

 Contingency 35% of Subtotal 104,00 

 Total $          400,000  

Packet Page 65



Project Description:   Replace steel roof and plywood sheathing. 
 
Project Need:  The roofing is nearing the end of its useful life.  Sheathing is in bad condi-
tion because improper moisture control in the attic promoted mold growth.  Rust is be-
ginning to form in areas around the metal fasteners making roof replacement in the next 
few years important before failure has reached the point of allowing enough moisture 
into the structure to damage other components within the structure. Leaks not repaired 
in a reasonable amount of time can also increase risk of health problems for the inhabit-
ants due to molds and material failures.  Roof sheathing beneath the roofing is also sus-
pect of possible failure.  This will compound the problem of the roof failure and should 
the wood around the fasteners that holds the roofing in place become soft from rot, the 
fasteners will no longer keep the roofing material in place.   
 
Maintenance History: Original construction 1988, residing and painting 1998, floor 
coverings 1999,  exterior painting 2007, new floor covering and interior renovations 
2012, new boiler room 2012.  Annual maintenance costs are $16,000.  
 
Development Plan & Status (Include Permit and Utility Requirements):  Concept 
 
Cost & Financing Data: Budgetary cost estimate developed in-house. 
 
  

R e v e n u e  S o u r c e  
A p p r o p r i a t e d  

F u n d s  

F I S C A L  Y E A R  F U N D I N G  R E Q U E S T S  

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 Total 

General Fund   50,000 448,550    498,550 

1% Sales Tax             

Grant             

Proprietary Fund  (Housing)         

TOTALS $   50,000 448,550    498,550 

Requested Funds: Engineering Services and Construction Services  

FY19-23 CMMP 

 

4-Plex Roof Replacement | Housing 

Estimated Project & Purchase Timeline 
Pre Design: N/A 

Engineering/Design: FY 2020 
Purchase/Construction: FY 2021 

Cost Assumptions  

 Engineering Services 20% of Construction 50,000 

 Other Professional Services 3.5% of Const 3,500 

 Machinery and Equipment 0 

 Construction Services 330,000  

 Subtotal 383,500 

 Contingency 30% of Subtotal 115,050 

 Total $          495,050  

Packet Page 66



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
THROUGH: Nancy M. Peterson, City Manager 
FROM: Marjie Veeder, City Clerk 
DATE:  February 13, 2018 
RE:  Liquor License Renewals 

 
SUMMARY:  Liquor licenses must be renewed with the State of Alaska every two years.  Each 
year Council reviews the renewal applications for the licenses up for renewal and determines 
whether or not the City will protest the request for renewal.  A total of ten liquor licenses are held 
by Unalaska businesses, and seven are up for renewal.  It is recommended that the City not 
protest the renewal of any of the seven licenses. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  Council reviews liquor license renewals each year.  Council 
discussed protesting specific license renewals in 1995, 2002 and 2006 due to delinquent utility 
bills, but did not file any protests.  In 2010 Council protested the renewal of a liquor license due 
to delinquent sales tax, property tax and utility bills, and because the business had no physical 
location due to fire. 
 
BACKGROUND:  AS 04.11.400 defines the distribution of liquor licenses based on population 
and location:    
 For every 1,500 or fraction thereof in population, one restaurant/eating place license is 

authorized.  Such licenses allow the establishment to serve only beer and wine.   
 For every 3,000 or fraction thereof of population, one beverage dispensary license is 

authorized and one package store license is authorized.   
 Beverage dispensary and restaurant/eating place licenses that are designated as 

tourism, convenience or airport do not count as licenses based on population.   
 
The City of Unalaska has the following breakdown of licenses authorized: 
 

Establishment License Type Explanation 

Alaska Ship Supply Package Store One of two package store licenses allowed by 
population 

Harbor View Liquor Store Package Store One of two package store licenses allowed by 
population 

Dutch Harbor Fast Food Restaurant/Eating 
Place 

One of three restaurant/eating place licenses 
allowed by population 

Amelia’s Restaurant 
Restaurant/Eating 

Place – Public 
Convenience 

Restaurant/Eating Place – Public Convenience is 
not counted in population per AS 04.11.400(g) 

Airport Restaurant & 
Lounge 

Beverage 
Dispensary – 

Tourism 

Beverage Dispensary – Tourism is not counted in 
population per AS 04.11.400(d)(2) 

Grand Aleutian Hotel 
Beverage 

Dispensary – 
Tourism 

Beverage Dispensary – Tourism is not counted in 
population per AS 04.11.400(d) 

Packet Page 67



Establishment License Type Explanation 

Grand Aleutian Hotel 
Chart Room 

Beverage 
Dispensary – 

Tourism Duplicate 

Beverage Dispensary – Tourism is not counted in 
population per AS 04.11.400(d) 

Harbor View Bar & Grill 
Beverage 

Dispensary – 
Tourism 

Beverage Dispensary – Tourism is not counted in 
population per AS 04.11.400(d) 

Harbor Sushi Beverage 
Dispensary 

One of the two beverage dispensary licenses 
allowed by population 

Norwegian Rat Saloon Beverage 
Dispensary 

One of the two beverage dispensary licenses 
allowed by population 

 
Based on population, Unalaska has two unused restaurant/eating place licenses.   
 
DISCUSSION:  The following licenses are up for renewal. 

1. Unisea, Inc., DBA Grand Aleutian Hotel - Chart Room 
2. Unisea, Inc., DBA Grand Aleutian Hotel 
3. Unisea, Inc., DBA Harborview Bar & Grill 
4. Unisea, Inc., DBA Harbor Sushi 
5. Unisea, Inc., DBA Harborview Liquor Store 
6. Loi My Ma DBA Dutch Harbor Restaurant 
7. Western Pioneer DBA Alaska Ship Supply 

 
None of these businesses are behind in taxes or utilities payments owed to the City with the 
exception of Alaska Ship Supply.  Due to an oversight, the second half of the business personal 
property tax payment is late.  The company has been contacted and staff believes payment is 
forthcoming. 
 
Council also considers the number of public safety calls made to an establishment each year, 
which are summarized in the attached chart. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  The Council may choose to protest a license renewal for any of the 
businesses and in that event must provide the business the opportunity to present a defense to 
the protest at a future council meeting.  This must be accomplished no later than March 13, 
2018. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   Probable loss of sales tax revenue if a license is not renewed. 
 
LEGAL:   None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends that Council not protest the renewal of any 
of the seven licenses. 
  
PROPOSED MOTION:  No action is necessary unless Council wishes to protest the renewal of 
any of the licenses. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  I support staff’s recommendation not to protest the renewal 
of any of the liquor licenses. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Summary of DPS calls to each establishment; letter from AMCO and 
renewal application for each of the seven licenses 

Packet Page 68



 

Grand 
Aleutian 

Chart 
Room 
2016 

Grand 
Aleutian 

Chart 
Room 
2017 

Grand 
Aleutian 

Hotel 
2016 

Grand 
Aleutian 

Hotel 
2017 

Harbor 
View 
Bar 
and 
Grill 
2016 

Harbor 
View 
Bar 
and 
Grill 
2017 

Harbor 
Sushi 
2016 

Harbor 
Sushi 
2017 

Harbor 
View 

Liquor 
Store 
2016 

Harbor 
View 

Liquor 
Store 
2017 

Dutch 
Harbor 

Restaurant 
2016 

Dutch 
Harbor 

Restaurant 
2017 

AK 
Ship 

Supply 
Liquor 
Store 
2016 

AK 
Ship 

Supply 
Liquor 
Store 
2017 

Ambulance Request   10 5 1          
Assault   5 5 3 5   1      
Assistance 
Rendered   11 3 2 2      1   

Burglary      1         
Civil   1 1           
Criminal Mischief      1         
Disorderly Conduct    1 1 1         
Domestic 
Disturbance   1 1           

Drunk Disturbance   3 5 1 4        1 
DUI    2 2 2   1      
Fire Response   2   1         
Fire Safety               
Fraud/Forgery   1      1      
Found Property    1 3          
Harassment   1  1 1         
Liquor Law Violation   4 3 11 7 1  1 1 1   2 
Lost Property    1 2 1         
Marijuana 
Enforcement    1 1          

MVA-Damage   2            
PC--Mental   1            
Probation Violation      1         
Public Safety   1 1 2          
Release Conditions   1 1 2 3        1 
Suspicious 
Person/Activity   4 2         1  

Taxi Violation               
Theft    3 2 3    1    1 
Traffic Crime               
Trespass   13 11 17 10         
Vehicle Theft   1            
Warrant Arrest    1  1         
Weapons               
Welfare Check   3 4       1  1  
Total Calls to 
Establishment   62 52 51 44 1  4 2 2 1 2 5 

Calls initiated by 
officer   6 12 19 23 1  3 1 1 0  3 

Calls initiated by 
staff/civilian   56 40 32 21 0  1 1 1 1  2 

 

Packet Page 69



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary – Tourism Duplicate License Number: 3301 
Licensee: Unisea, Inc. 
Doing Business As: Grand Aleutian Hotel – Chart Room 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 70

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 71



Packet Page 72



Packet Page 73



Packet Page 74



Packet Page 75



Packet Page 76



Packet Page 77



Packet Page 78



Packet Page 79



Packet Page 80



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary – Tourism  License Number: 3290 
Licensee: Unisea, Inc. 
Doing Business As: Grand Aleutian Hotel  

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 81

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 82



Packet Page 83



Packet Page 84



Packet Page 85



Packet Page 86



Packet Page 87



Packet Page 88



Packet Page 89



Packet Page 90



Packet Page 91



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary – Tourism License Number: 1185 
Licensee: Unisea, Inc. 
Doing Business As: Harbor View Bar & Grill 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 92

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 93



Packet Page 94



Packet Page 95



Packet Page 96



Packet Page 97



Packet Page 98



Packet Page 99



Packet Page 100



Packet Page 101



Packet Page 102



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary  License Number: 4748 
Licensee: Unisea, Inc. 
Doing Business As: Harbor Sushi 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 103

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 104



Packet Page 105



Packet Page 106



Packet Page 107



Packet Page 108



Packet Page 109



Packet Page 110



Packet Page 111



Packet Page 112



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Package Store  License Number: 1367 
Licensee: Unisea, Inc. 
Doing Business As: Harbor View Liquor Store 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 113

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 114



Packet Page 115



Packet Page 116



Packet Page 117



Packet Page 118



Packet Page 119



Packet Page 120



Packet Page 121



Packet Page 122



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 24, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Restaurant/Eating Place License Number: 3811 
Licensee: Loi My Ma 
Doing Business As: Dutch Harbor Restaurant 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 123

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 124



Packet Page 125



Packet Page 126



Packet Page 127



Packet Page 128



Packet Page 129



 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

January 23, 2018 
 
City of Unalaska 
Attn: Marjie Veeder 
Via Email: mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us   
 
Re: Notice of 2018/2019 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Package Store License Number: 2721 
Licensee: Western Pioneer Inc 
Doing Business As: Alaska Ship Supply 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
 

Packet Page 130

mailto:mveeder@ci.unalaska.ak.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Packet Page 131



Packet Page 132



Packet Page 133



Packet Page 134



Packet Page 135



Packet Page 136



Packet Page 137



Packet Page 138



Packet Page 139



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-11 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING TAXICAB RATES FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2018  
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) § 9.12.065 requires all licensed taxicabs 
operating within the city to have installed an instrument (meter) by which charges for hire of such 
taxicabs are calculated; and 
 
WHEREAS, UCO requires that the meter shall calculate the fare and be calibrated in accordance 
with the fare standards set by the City Council at its first regular meeting in January each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the taxi rates for calendar year 2018 will not change from the rates for calendar year 
2017; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council establishes the taxicab 
rates for 2018, which include the 3% sales tax, as follows:   
 

• $2.65 per flag drop;  
• $0.30 per 1/10 mile;  
• $5.30 for each additional fare over two;  
• $1.06 per minute waiting time; 
• $80.00 per hour charter. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said rates include a Senior Citizen Discount of $1.00 off any 
metered rate between $5.00 and $10.00, and $2.00 off any metered rate over $10.00. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on February 
13, 2018. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 

Packet Page 140



- 1 - 
 

 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Marjie Veeder, City Clerk 
Through: Nancy Peterson, City Manager 
Date:  February 13, 2018 
Re: Resolution 2018-11, a Resolution of the Unalaska City Council 

establishing taxicab rates for the calendar year 2018 as required by the 
Unalaska Code of Ordinances 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) § 9.12.065(A)(3) requires that the City 
Council set taxicab rates at the first regular meeting in January each year.  Resolution 2018-11 
sets the rates for calendar year 2018 at the same level as the rates of calendar year 2017.  Staff 
recommends adoption of this resolution. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  Council has adopted taxicab rates annually since 1993. 
Through Resolution 2006-01, Council increased rates by $0.03 per minute for waiting time and 
added $80.00 per hour for charters.  The rates have not changed since 2006.  Last year the 
council adopted the rates at the same level under Resolution 2017-04. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The taxicab ordinance was adopted in 1993 and revised in 2003 and 2005.  
In 2005, several changes were made, but UCO § 9.12.065(A)(3) has not changed through the 
years of revision.  The ordinance requires the City Council to set the rates each year.  At the 
time of the 1993 adoption, the Taxi Owner’s Association was active and provided input on this 
issue. 
 
DISCUSSION:  In the past, the Director of Public Safety and the City Clerk met with the taxi 
permit holders to discuss rates prior to the first City Council meeting in January.  In 2008, 
because of a lack of participation by the taxicab permit owners, there was no meeting. 
Beginning in 2009, the City Clerk asked taxicab owners to submit written comments about the 
rates. In 2016 a meeting was scheduled to discuss rate increases, but no taxi permit owners 
attended. On January 16, 2018, a letter was sent to the taxi permit holders asking for written 
comments regarding rates and encouraging them to attend tonight’s council meeting.  No 
responses were received. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Adopt rates as recommended, raise the rates, or lower the rates. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the adoption of Resolution 2018-11. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  I move to adopt Resolution 2018-11. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  I recommend council adopt Resolution 2018-11. 
 

Packet Page 141



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-12 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE COUNCIL'S 
GOALS FOR THE FY19 BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS, budget guidelines help to ensure that the budget is prepared in a manner 
consistent with City Council desires; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has discussed and selected the attached set of budget 
goals for FY19; and 
 
WHEREAS, management will utilize the adopted goals as guidelines when developing 
the FY19 budget. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council adopts the 
attached goals as a guideline for developing the FY19 budget. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 

Packet Page 142



UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL  
FY19 BUDGET GOALS 

 
Personnel 
Any proposed increase to the total number of full-time equivalent (FTE) positions will be fully 
evaluated and justified during the budget approval work sessions. 
 
General Fund Surplus/Deficit 
The General Fund operations will be budgeted without a deficit.  The Council may appropriate 
additional funds from surplus to cover costs of capital projects. 
 
Proprietary Funding 
Staff will continue to seek ways to balance budgets in the proprietary funds. 
 
Operating Expenses 
The City Manager's proposed FY19 General Fund budget shall not increase more than 3 
percent for non-personnel expenditures. 
 
The total amount available to fund the Community Support Program grants will continue to 
follow the formula of up to 3.4642% of the five-year average revenue for the General Fund and 
up to all of the Bed Tax Fund balance for the most recently completed fiscal year. (Revenues do 
not include Other Financing Sources.) 
 
City management shall continue to examine ways to reduce expenditures without significantly 
impacting the level and quality of services to the public. 
 
City management shall continue to examine ways to reduce inventory without significantly 
impacting the level and quality of services to the public. 
 
Capital Projects 
New capital assets or maintenance of existing capital assets will be limited to projects approved 
by Council in the CMMP, which will include projects that are mandated or required by statute, 
projects that maintain our existing infrastructure, projects that address life, safety, or health 
issues, and projects that support the economic development of Unalaska. 
 
The replacement and maintenance plans for all existing capital assets will be reviewed annually. 
The vehicle and heavy equipment fleet requirements will be reviewed annually and reduced 
where appropriate without significantly impacting services provided to the public. 
 
Revenues 
Proprietary Fund rate studies will be completed every three years and presented to council. 
The mil rate will be reviewed annually to establish an appropriate mil rate to maintain 
infrastructure and operations. 
 
Debt Service 
The City will not incur new debt without appropriate analysis to show impacts to rates or 
taxpayers, and will not incur new debt unless the capital asset is eligible for a debt 
reimbursement program; is mandated by State or Federal government; or is needed to address 
life, safety or health issues.  The City may incur debt for its Proprietary Funds provided there is 
a documented plan to pay the debt through rate adjustments. 

Packet Page 143



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 
To: Mayor and City Council Members 
From: Erin Reinders, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Nancy Peterson, City Manager 
Date: February 13, 2018 
Re: Resolution 2018-12, A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council approving the 

Council’s goals for the FY19 budget 

 
SUMMARY: This memo provides information regarding recommended FY19 Budget 
Goals.  The FY19 Budget Goals are attached and will be utilized to help direct the 
preparation of the budget once approved. Resolution 2018-12 formally adopts these 
budget goals. Staff recommends approval. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: The City Council has reviewed budget goals at the 
beginning of each budget cycle since about 2002. The City Council considered the 
FY19 Budget goals during a work session at the January 23, 2018 Council meeting and 
reached general consensus regarding minor updates from the FY18 goals. 
 
BACKGROUND: Much of what we do as a municipal government is legislatively or 
code driven.  City staff will continue seek ways to perform our service to the community 
more efficiently in an effort to reduce costs and increase our effectiveness. 
 
DISCUSSION: The City Council Goals for the FY19 Budget are attached. Staff 
addressed the following key points on various issues impacting the budget goals on 
January 23rd:  
 
Personnel: Staff anticipates requesting one additional fulltime position and funding for 
miscellaneous part time roles.  The anticipated increase in full time equivalent (FTE) in 
the FY19 budget is described below.   

In FY18, Council authorized a total of 166.13 full time equivalent (FTE) employees, but 
this total did not include the Natural Resource Analysist and the Building Inspector that 
were identified as authorized but unfunded positions.  The Medium Equipment Operator 
– Temp was inadvertently left out of the FY18 budget and the authorized total FTE 
count, as it had been included in previous years.   

The number of FTE authorizations being considered by Administration at this time will 
increase the total by 4.06 to 170.19 in FY19.  There are 156 full-time permanent 
positions (156 FTE), 29 part-time positions (6.69 FTE), and 11 temporary or seasonal 
positions (5.5 FTE) to be being proposed for FY19.  Additionally, there are 2 pending 
positions (2 FTE) that are not being included in the budget but will be included in the 
number of authorized positions. 

Packet Page 144



This proposed total FTE includes the authorized and unbudgeted Natural Resource 
Analysist (1 FTE) and the Building Inspector (1 FTE) as well as the now budgeted 
Medium Equipment Operator – Temp (.50 FTE).  

This total also includes the 5 Planning Commissioners (.012 FTE per Commissioner = 
0.06 FTE), who are now getting paid $100 per meeting as a result of the recent Title 2 
changes. Funding for these positons is included in the Planning Department’s 
Personnel budget for FY19. 

Funding is being proposed for an additional full time permanent Solid Waste Operator 1 
(1.00 FTE), and is included in the proposed FTE total for FY19.  Landfill operations and 
regulations are steadily expanding, yet the Solid Waste Division continues to function, 
since FY98, with only four full time permanent employees and one seasonal temporary 
employee. This leaves little other option than consistent overtime in order to maintain 
operations and stay in compliance with the terms of our operating permits, which is 
further increased when leave time is required due to vacations or medical needs. 
Although an analysis of the Solid Waste operations indicates a need for two full time 
Solid Waste Operators, only one is being considered at this time.  
 
Funding is being considered in the budget to support a 0.50 FTE of Student Aide 
assistance in Planning. The will reduce the funding required in the non-personnel 
operational budget as the tasks associated with this position are related to special 
projects that would have otherwise been accomplished by a more costly external 
consultant. No benefits are offered to temporary employees, such as the Student Aide. 
 
Administration will have a more detailed discussion with the Council during the budget 
presentation regarding approval for these proposed positions. 
 
General Fund Surplus/Deficit: While projected revenues are down, we anticipate the 
ability to once again have a budgeted surplus in FY19. 

Proprietary Funds: City owned housing is used as an incentive for recruitment and 
retention, therefore, while we conservatively budget operations and renovations, a gap 
in funding will continue.  In addition, the cost to operate the Airport continues to increase 
faster than the revenue gains.   

Operating Expenses: Although the goal is set at a maximum increase of 3% for non-
personnel expenses, the Directors will prepare their proposed budgets understanding 
any non-personnel increases will have to be justified and evaluated to ensure that the 
level and quality of services to the public is maintained or improved. 

Capital Projects: The CMMP is currently being developed.  A presentation of the draft 
projects, with a special focus on FY19, is planned for the February 13 Council Work 
Session. 

Revenues: Projected revenues for the Propriety Funds will be presented along with the 
draft budget later in the budgeting process.  Rate studies for Water, Wastewater and 

Packet Page 145



Solid Waste were completed in FY17 and a rate study for Electrical was completed in 
FY16. Adjustments have been made accordingly and with Council approval.  Port 
related tariffs and fees were evaluated in FY17, with Council approved adjustments 
made in July and August of 2017.  

Projected revenues for the General funds for FY19 will be presented on January 23, 
2018.  We anticipate this to be similar to last year’s, but a slight decrease is anticipated.  
No change to the mil rate is recommended at this time. 

Debt Service: As Council is aware, the City has incurred debt in the Ports Fund for the 
UMC, Positions 3 and 4 Project. 

ALTERNATIVES: Various alternatives exist.  As Staff traverses the budget process we 
will seek ways to perform our work more efficiently in an effort to reduce costs and 
increase our effectiveness. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Financial implications will be brought forward during the 
budget presentations. 
 
LEGAL: None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the approval of the FY19 Budget 
Goals through Resolution 2018-12. 
 

Packet Page 146



CITY OF UNALASKA  
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
DISPOSE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY, SPECIFICALLY A 1992 PIERCE ARROW FIRE ENGINE, 
TO AN ALASKA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OR AGENCY THEREOF 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) § 7.20.010(B) allows for the disposal of City of 
Unalaska surplus property, with a value of less than $25,000, that is no longer needed for municipal 
purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Safety has a 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine that is 
determined to be surplus property and is no longer needed for municipal purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine is a special purpose vehicle, with few other 
applications than as an emergency fire response vehicle; and  
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the value of this fire engine is less than $25,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, UCO § 7.20.010(B) states in part: personal property no longer needed for municipal 
purposes shall be disposed of in one or more of the following manner; (1) by public outcry auction to 
the highest bidder, (2) by public sealed auction to the highest bidder, (3) to the best qualified 
proposal who responds to a request for proposal to acquire property, (4) to an educational, religious, 
charitable, or non-profit association or corporation providing services to Unalaska citizens, (5) to the 
United States, the State of Alaska or an Alaska municipal corporation or any agency or department 
thereof; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Safety shall notify other Alaska communities that the 1992 
Pierce Arrow Fire Engine is being disposed of by the City of Unalaska. Public Safety shall solicit 
letters of interest, asking that any interested parties detail their specific need and their understanding 
that they would pay for all shipping costs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the letters of interest will be reviewed and a scoring matrix will be applied in order to 
select which interested party would receive the fire engine; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selected party be responsible for all shipping costs.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council authorizes the City Manager 
to dispose of city personal property, specifically a surplus 1992 Pierce Arrow Fire Engine, to an 
Alaska municipal corporation or agency thereof. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on February 
13, 2018. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 

Packet Page 147



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM:  Jennifer Shockley, Acting Director Department of Public Safety 

THROUGH: Nancy Peterson, Interim City Manager 

DATE:  February 13, 2018 

RE: Resolution 2018-14 – A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council Authorizing the 
City Manager to dispose of personal property, specifically a 1992 Pierce Arrow 
Fire Engine, to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency thereof 

 

 
SUMMARY:  The City recently acquired a new Fire Engine for service in Unalaska and delivery 
is expected within the next month or so. Once the new engine is delivered to Unalaska, 
Resolution 2018-14 will authorize the City to dispose of the engine it is replacing, a 1992 Pierce 
Arrow Fire Engine, to an Alaska Municipal Corporation or agency, as allowed for in the 
Unalaska Code of Ordinances.  
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council has addressed disposal of a surplus specialty fire 
department apparatus in the past. In February 2016, the council authorized the disposal of a 
1999 Freightliner Ambulance in Resolution 2016-17, and later authorized the award of the 
ambulance to a nearby community.   
 
BACKGROUND:  In 2016 the council authorized the disposal of a 1999 surplus ambulance to a 
nearby community. The surplus ambulance was awarded to Chignik after they demonstrated a 
specific need through a letter of interest and the application of a scoring matrix. Chignik was 
responsible for paying the cost of shipping the ambulance to their community. Other specialty 
Fire/EMS apparatus have been similarly disposed of in previous years. 
 
DISCUSSION: The City of Unalaska purchased a new Fire Engine in 2017 to replace the 1992 
Pierce Fire Engine. The 1992 Pierce Engine is a special use type of vehicle that has few 
applications other than as emergency fire apparatus. Currently, similar vehicles are being listed 
between $12,000 and $40,000 on various websites that specialize in selling used emergency 
vehicles. The cost for shipping the engine to a central location for such an auction is estimated 
at well over $10,000. The City could also sell the Engine locally, through our annual Surplus 
Auction. 
 
Considering that the engine is a special use vehicle and there are small communities in our 
region that might benefit from the use of the vehicle, the process detailed below is 
recommended by staff. 
 
The Department of Public Safety would notify other Alaska municipal corporations and agencies 
thereof that the 1992 Pierce Engine is being disposed of by the City of Unalaska. Public Safety 
would solicit letters of interest, asking that any interested parties detail their specific need and 
their understanding that they would pay for all shipping costs. The letters of interest would be 
reviewed and the attached scoring matrix would be applied in order to select which interested 

Packet Page 148



party would receive the engine. The selected party would be responsible for all shipping costs.  
The 1992 engine will not be disposed of until the new engine is received in Unalaska. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  The alternatives to approving this resolution include: disposing of the surplus 
engine through an auction process, either locally or through a specialty auction house; re-
purposing the vehicle for another City use; or continuing to store the surplus engine.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None, as the cost for shipping would be borne by the community 
awarded the engine. 
 
LEGAL:  None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Council approve the disposal of the 1992 
Pierce Engine through the process outlined. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  Request a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-14, allowing the City 
Manager to dispose of the 1992 Pierce Engine to an Alaska municipal corporation or agency 
thereof that demonstrates the highest need, which will be established through a letter of interest 
and the application of a scoring matrix. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support adoption of Resolution 2018-14. The City’s previous 
practice to surplus specialty equipment in this manner has been very helpful to other 
communities in our region. 
 

Packet Page 149



Trained Total
Region Storage Maintenance Use Existing Responders Need Points 

Agency Organization Max Pt.2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 1 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 Max Pt. 2 xxxxxxxx

Aleutian Region Storage Maintenance Use 
0-other 0 - Outdoors 0 - No Ability to maintain 0 - less then 5 calls per year 
1-Western AK 1 - Demonstrated ability 1 - less than 20 calls per year 
2-Peninsula & Aleutians 2 - Stored indoors 2 - greater then 20 calls per year 

Existing Need 
0 - less than 10 yrs old 0 - less than 3 trained responders Evaluators discretion to award up to 2 points based on need
1- less than 20 yrs old 1 - 3 or more trained responders and other factors presented in the request letter
2 - greater than 20 yrs old 

1 - Outdoors covered w/ Plug

Trained Responders 

Engine Giveaway Scoring Matrix 

 
 

Packet Page 150



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-19 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING THE PASSAGE 
OF SENATE BILL 92 
 
WHEREAS, hundreds of derelict vessels currently litter Alaska’s coastline and harbors 
and these numbers will increase every year unless action is taken to address aging 
fleets and changing commercial fisheries; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the past two years alone there have been numerous derelict vessel 
situations that have cost the state, municipalities, and the federal government 
considerable expense, including two ex-Navy tugs in Adak, abandoned barges in 
Steamboat Slough near Bethel, the tug Challenger that sunk off Juneau, and the 
Fishing Vessel Akutan in Captain’s Bay in Unalaska; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Alaska Association of Harbormasters and Port Administrators 
recognizes the widespread costs and the environmental and navigational risks for both 
municipalities and the state associated with derelict vessels; and 
 
WHEREAS, neighboring states have dramatically strengthened their derelict vessel 
prevention laws in the past five years to better track, manage, and ultimately prevent 
derelict vessels, including raising fees to support state management of derelict vessels 
and requiring vessel insurance; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1990, the Alaska Legislature passed a resolution acknowledging the 
need to better understand and address the existing and growing problem of derelict 
vessels around the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Alaska’s statutes regarding derelict vessels are outdated, 
which hampers agency enforcement authority, statewide coordination of response, 
funding or vessel insurance requirements; and the ability to track vessel owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2013 the AAHPA supported the creation of the ad-hoc Derelict Vessel 
Task Force which includes representatives from state and federal agencies as well as 
the AAHPA, regional tribal representatives, federal and state legislative offices, and 
private industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, over nine full-day meetings, the task force developed thoughtful, robust and 
meaningful proposed changes that will help all stakeholders around the state, including 
harbor facilities, better address and prevent derelict vessels; and 
 

Packet Page 151



WHEREAS, this will help our members protect harbor infrastructure, keep valuable 
moorage space in our harbors available, and prevent environmental and navigational 
hazards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed changes will improve communication and coordination 
between Alaska’s harbors and state and federal agencies, leading directly to decreased 
costs associated with managing derelict vessels.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Unalaska City Council fully 
supports the passage by the state legislature of Senate Bill 92.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 
 

Packet Page 152



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Peggy McLaughlin, Director of Ports & Harbors 
Through: Nancy M. Peterson, City Manager 
Date:  February 13, 2018 
Re:  A Resolution of the Unalaska City Council supporting the passage of 

Senate Bill 92. 
 
 
SUMMARY:  Resolution 2018-19 is a resolution supporting the passage of SB92.  SB92 
proposes changes to State regulations that would make it easier for communities to 
deal with abandoned and derelict vessels. Coastal communities have been urged by the 
Alaska Association of Harbormasters and Port Administrators to issue resolutions of 
support for SB92 as a way to strengthen Alaska’s law.  By passing this resolution, the 
Unalaska City Council will be on record as one of the communities supporting SB92 and 
calling for change. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: Council approved Resolution 2018-04 on January 9, 
2018 establishing Legislative Changes to the Derelict Vessel Statutes as a FY19 State 
Legislative Priority. 

BACKGROUND: The Alaska Association of Harbormasters and Port Administrators 
(AAHPA) requested Resolutions of support for SB92. Sponsored by Senator Micciche, 
SB92 proposes changes to the Abandoned and Derelict Vessel section of State Statute. 

DISCUSSION: In 2014, the Alaska Association of Harbormasters and Port 
Administrators formed an Abandoned and Derelict Vessel Task Force to begin 
addressing the problem, and to plan for possible alternatives to prevent or at least slow 
the influx of these vessels.  SB92 is a result of their efforts.  This resolution requests the 
support of the Unalaska City Council for the passage of SB92. The AAHPA will be 
lobbying for SB92 during the current legislative session.  

Unalaska’s recent experience with the Akutan drives home the point that coastal 
Alaskan communities are subject to abandoned and derelict vessels, and no community 
is exempt. SB92 gives communities across the state the means to address this 
problem.  Included below are background details from the information packet put 
together by the task force in order to inform communities about the ongoing issues of 
derelict and abandoned vessels and SB92:   

“Hundreds of boats exist abandoned and derelict along Alaska’s coasts and 
rivers, in municipal harbors, and on private and Native shores. Unfortunately, 
while we will always have this legacy of boats to contend with, the problem 
continues to grow. Any boat owner knows that a boat is expensive to maintain 

Packet Page 153



and keep on the water. All things, and especially those on the water, need 
constant attention and care to keep them seaworthy. As a boat ages, it’s all too 
common that it gets passed along to new owners until it is left in the hands of a 
person least able to deal with it at the end of its useful life.   

Nationwide, states have been cracking down on derelict vessel laws. They know 
that this tide of old boats is increasing. Without action, the public is left liable for 
these boats when they are left in our harbors, on our fishing grounds, and in the 
waters in front of our homes and fish camps.  In 2014 the ad-hoc Abandoned and 
Derelict Vessel Task Force formed to learn from other states, understand 
Alaska’s current derelict vessel laws, and examine Alaskan case studies. The 
group explored jurisdictional boundaries between agencies, found common 
ground between municipalities and the state, and ultimately decided that a full 
rewrite of Alaska’s outdated derelict vessel statutes was the best way forward.   

Senate Bill 92 dramatically improves our state derelict vessel law, and will 
provide commonsense protections for responsible boat owners, municipalities, 
the State, and tribes throughout Alaska. In 1990 the legislatures passed HCR 53, 
requesting the governor study the problem of abandoned vessels and make 
appropriate recommendations … for legislation necessary to remedy existing 
problems and prevent future problems. Almost thirty years later, SB92 is before 
the legislature to do just that.   

Major gains through SB92 include: Increased clarity in definitions of ‘derelict’ and 
‘owner’ and the full scope of liability of a boat owner, improved due process and 
notice requirements when impounding boats, a benefit to boat owners and in line 
with federal admiralty law, increased penalties and enforcement authority for 
agencies and municipalities working to hold irresponsible owners accountable, 
streamlined capacity for prevention and management of derelict vessels through 
the permissive creation of a derelict vessel program at ADNR allowing for more 
efficient use of staff time and state resources, and increased accountability of 
ownership through registration and titling of boats similar to motor vehicles – 
closing the loop that it is currently easier to own a boat in Alaska than a boat 
trailer (and yet the boat comes with much greater liability to the public).  

Responsible boat owners will see a $2 to $10 increase per year in registration 
fees. Each derelict vessel response costs the state tens to hundreds of 
thousands of dollars, not including staff time. This small increase in individual 
fees may directly allow for better accountability and enforcement against derelict 
vessels and those owners who would walk away and leave their problems for the 
rest of the boating public to deal with.   

Derelict vessels exist and continue to be dumped across Alaska’s coast and 
rivers. This is a significant and growing statewide issue. SB92 will help Alaskans 
take a huge step forward into a more pro-active and engaged position, holding 
those accountable who walk away from these disasters.” 

Packet Page 154



ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Council may support Resolution 2018-19; 

2) Council may choose not to support Resolution 2018-19; or  

3) Council may modify the proposed resolution.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  None. 

LEGAL: None. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2018-19. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move to adopt Resolution 2018-19. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  This Resolution supports the Council’s FY19 
Legislative Priorities adopted on January 9, 2018.  I recommend adoption of Resolution 
2018-19. 

 

Packet Page 155



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-15 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL CONFIRMING THE MAYOR'S 
APPOINTMENTS TO THE LIBRARY ADVISORY COMMITTEE; THE PARKS, CULTURE AND 
RECREATION COMMITTEE; THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND PLATTING BOARD; AND 
THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, City of Unalaska Code of Ordinances §2.60.040 states that each member of a 
committee or commission shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval of the City 
Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mayor Kelty has considered the applications of members of the public and has 
submitted names to the City Council for approval. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor's appointments of the following persons 
to serve on the designated committee or commission are hereby confirmed: 
 

COMMITTEE / COMMISSION APPOINTEE TERM 
EXPIRES 

Library Advisory Committee (1) M. Lynn Crane 2/14/2021 
 (2) Catherine Hazen 2/14/2021 
 (3) Robert Cummings  
   
Parks, Culture and Recreation Committee (1) James Morris 2/14/2021 
 (2) Kelly Stiles 2/14/2021 
   
Planning Commission and Platting Board;  
and the Historic Preservation Commission 

(1) Caroline S. Williams 2/14/2021 
(2) Thomas Bell 2/14/2021 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 
 

Packet Page 156



Packet Page 157



Packet Page 158



Packet Page 159



Packet Page 160



Packet Page 161



Packet Page 162



Packet Page 163



Packet Page 164



Packet Page 165



Packet Page 166



Packet Page 167



MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 

TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
THROUGH: Nancy M. Peterson, City Manager 
FROM: Marjie Veeder, City Clerk 
DATE:  February 13, 2018 
RE:  Travel to Juneau for City Lobbying Events 

 
The City’s annual lobbying trip to Juneau is scheduled for the week of March 19, 2018.  
In addition to meetings with various legislators and commissioners, the City will host a 
Constituent Dinner on Monday, March 19, 2018 and our Seafood Reception on 
Tuesday, March 20, 2018. 
 
Departure from Unalaska is scheduled for Sunday, March 18; with a return on 
Thursday, March 22, 2018. 
 
Council’s travel policy limits attendance at any one meeting to three council members in 
addition to the Mayor. 
 
These events and the associated travel were included in the FY18 budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 168



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-17 

 
A RESOLUTION OF  THE UNALASKA CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
TO SIGN AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF UNALASKA 
AND THOMAS E. THOMAS TO SERVE AS CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF 
UNALASKA 
 
WHEREAS, Unalaska Code of Ordinances § 2.24.010 empowers the City Council to 
appoint the City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is in need of the services of a City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Unalaska City Council desires to retain the services of Thomas E. 
Thomas as City Manager upon the terms set forth in the Employment Agreement 
attached hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, Thomas E. Thomas desires to serve as City Manager of the City of 
Unalaska upon the terms set forth in the attached Employment Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Unalaska City Council authorizes the 
Mayor to sign the Employment Agreement between the City of Unalaska and Thomas 
E. Thomas to serve as City Manager of the City of Unalaska. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dennis Robinson 
      Vice Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Acting City Clerk 
 
 

Packet Page 169



 
MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  Nancy M. Peterson, Interim City Manager 
Date:  February 13, 2018 
Re: Resolution 2018-17, a Resolution of  the Unalaska City Council 

authorizing the Mayor to sign an Employment Agreement between the City 
of Unalaska and Thomas E. Thomas to serve as City Manager of the City 
of Unalaska 

 
 
SUMMARY: This Resolution will authorize the Mayor to sign an employment agreement 
with Thomas E. Thomas to serve as Unalaska’s City Manager. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  The City Council interviewed 4 candidates for the 
position of City Manager on February 4, 2018.  Following the interviews, the City 
Council authorized the Mayor to negotiate a contract of employment with Thomas E. 
Thomas to serve as City Manager. 

BACKGROUND:   

DISCUSSION:  Mayor Kelty and Mr. Thomas have come to a mutual agreement on the 
attached, negotiated Employment Agreement. The Council must approve the final terms 
of the proposed agreement. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

LEGAL:  The City Attorney has reviewed the attached agreement. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution 2018-17. 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  

 

Packet Page 170



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is between the City of Unalaska, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Alaska, acting through its City Council, hereinafter referred to as “City”, and Thomas E. Thomas, 
hereinafter referred to as “City Manager” or “Employee”. 
 
WHEREAS, the Unalaska Code of Ordinances (UCO) empowers the City Council to appoint 
and remove the Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is in need of the services of a City Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Unalaska desires to retain the services of Thomas E. 
Thomas as its City Manager upon the terms set forth herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, Thomas E. Thomas desires to serve as City Manager of the City of Unalaska upon 
the terms set forth herein. 
 
THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Appointment. 

A. The Unalaska City Council appoints Thomas E. Thomas as City Manager subject to 
terms and conditions set forth herein. City Manager is an at-will Employee, who serves 
at the pleasure of the City Council. 

B City Manager shall perform all duties and functions assigned to the City Manager by law 
 or ordinance and such other duties and functions as the City Council shall from time to 
 time prescribe. 

C. The parties understand and agree the position of City Manager is an executive position 
 which routinely involves work in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours 
 per week, and is intended to be exempt from the overtime compensation provisions of 
 the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

Section 2.  Hours of Accessibility. 

A. The City Manager shall be available and present in the city’s offices, or other city 
facilities, during normal business hours Monday through Friday of each week, excluding 
holidays.  

B. The City Manager shall be accessible to the Mayor, City Council Members and City 
Department Heads via telephone on a 24 hour basis, seven days per week. 

C. The Mayor and City Manager, if necessary, may mutually agree to some flexibility in this 
schedule to accommodate the needs of both the Manager and the City. 

 

Packet Page 171



Section 3. Term. 

A. This agreement shall commence March 19, 2018, and shall remain in effect for an 
indefinite term. 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 
City Council to terminate the services of City Manager at any time, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in paragraph 14(A). 

C. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of City 
Manager to resign at any time from his position with Employer, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in paragraph 14(B). 

Section 4. Salary. 

A. In consideration of the services to be rendered by City Manager, the City shall pay City 
Manager for services rendered hereunder an annual base salary of $170,000 payable in 
installments at the same time as other employees of the City are paid.  

 
B.  Consideration shall be given, on an annual basis, to an increase in compensation based 

on performance. 
 
C. In addition to the compensation in paragraphs 4(a) and 4(b): 
 

1. Employee will receive compensation for holidays recognized in UCO § 3.44.060. 

2. Employee will be afforded the same travel and per diem privileges as provided to all 
city employees and elected officials when conducting business outside of the City of 
Unalaska. 

3. Employee will be afforded the same travel benefit as provided to all city employees 
as set forth in UCO § 3.60.120. 

4. Employee shall be provided with a term life insurance policy in the amount of 
$150,000 annually. 

Section 5. Professional Development.   

Employer recognizes that the duties of City Manager require a certain amount of travel by 
Employee including travel to meetings of the Alaska Municipal League (AML), Southwest Alaska 
Municipal Conference (SWAMC) and the International City/County Management Association 
(ICMA).  The Employee will be provided with a Purchasing card to render payment for such 
travel, meals and entertainment, excluding alcohol. 

 

 

Packet Page 172



Section 6. Dues and Subscriptions.   

Employer agrees to pay the following dues and expenses on behalf of City Manager: 

A. Membership dues for AML and IC/CMA; and 
 

B. Actual and reasonable expenses for City Manager to attend AML legislative conferences 
and the annual meeting, the SWAMC annual conference, the IC/CMA annual conference 
and other conferences mutually agreed to in writing by both parties. 

Section 7. Housing.   

Employer agrees to provide City Manager with City Housing at the rental rate established by 
City policy, excluding utilities. 

Section 8. Vehicle.   

Employer agrees to provide City Manager with the exclusive use of a vehicle at all times during 
employment with the City. Employer shall provide for insurance, repair, operation, fuel and 
maintenance of said vehicle. 

Section 9. Personal Leave.   

City Manager shall accrue personal leave at the rate of eight (8) weeks per year. The City will 
provide 3 weeks of personal leave beginning on the commencement of the contract and then 
Employee will begin to accrue an additional 5 weeks of  leave for a total of 8 weeks of leave 
annually. 

Section 10.  Retirement System.   

A. City Manager shall be covered by the State of Alaska Public Employees' Retirement 
System.  

B. In addition, the City shall contribute 5% of the Employee’s base wage annually toward 
the ICMA-RC 457 plan. 

Section 11.  Medical Benefits.  

City Manager shall be entitled to medical benefits as specified in UCO § 3.48.020. 

Section 12.  Evaluations.  

City Manager shall be given a performance evaluation ninety (90) days before each anniversary 
date of this Agreement. The review shall be conducted in Executive Session unless requested 
to be in open session by the Employee. 

 

Packet Page 173



Section 13.  Moving Expenses. 

A. Employer agrees to pay direct to the shipping company for actual and necessary moving 
expenses to Unalaska, in an amount not to exceed $9,000, plus four (4) one-way air 
fares for the Employee, Employee's spouse and two minor children to travel from the 
point of hire to Unalaska. Employee shall produce receipts for actual moving expenses 
to Employer. 

B. If City Manager voluntarily leaves employment with the city before completing 12 
continuous months of employment, the City Manager will be required to repay the city for 
all moving expenses reimbursed. The repayment of the moving expenses may be 
waived by the City Council. 

C. Upon termination or non-renewal of this Agreement by Employer, Employer shall pay 
directly to the shipping company, the Employee's reasonable actual expenses of moving 
personal belongings from Unalaska, not to exceed Nine Thousand Dollars ($9,000), plus 
four (4) one-way fares to the point of hire from Unalaska. 

Section 14.  Termination of Agreement. 

A. The City Council may terminate the City Manager at any time, for any reason or for no 
reason, by delivering to the City Manager written notice of termination. Said notice is not 
required to specify any reasons for the termination.  In the event City Manager is 
terminated by Employer before expiration of the aforesaid term of employment and 
during such time that City Manager is willing and able to perform the duties of City 
Manager, Employer agrees to pay City Manager a lump sum cash payment equal to 
sixteen (16) weeks aggregate current salary plus accrued and unused personal leave, 4 
months of medical insurance and life insurance (as outlined in section 4A), as of the date 
of termination in lieu of any and all other damages or monies that City Manager might 
claim.  

B. If the  City Manager is terminated “for cause”, including, but not limited to,  any illegal act 
involving personal gain to the City Manager, then Employer shall have no obligation to 
pay any of the aggregate severance sum designated in this Section 

C. In the event City Manager voluntarily resigns his position with Employer before 
expiration of the aforesaid term of employment, then City Manager shall give Employer 
three (3) months' notice in advance and Employer agrees to pay City Manager any 
accrued and unused personal leave as of the City Manager’s last day of employment. 
Provided that such notice is given, there will be no breach of this Agreement by reason 
of said resignation, and City Manager shall not be responsible for any damages 
hereunder. 

D. Prior to any termination for cause, City Manager shall be entitled to a hearing before the 
Council, at which he may be represented by counsel, present and cross-examine 
witnesses. Upon termination for cause, City shall not be responsible for making any 
payment of the balance of the City Manager's accrued annual leave to the date of 
termination. 

Packet Page 174



E. Prior to any termination with or without cause the City Council or a representative thereof 
shall confer with the City Attorney. 

Section 15.  Title 3 Provisions Superseded.  

This is an individual employment agreement as that term is used in UCO § 3.60.090 and 
supersedes provisions of Title 3 not specifically referenced and incorporated into this 
agreement. 

Section 16.  Indemnification.   

City shall defend, indemnify and save harmless City Manager from and against losses, 
damages, liabilities, expenses, claims and demands arising out of any act or omission of City 
Manager while acting within the scope of City Manager's duties under this agreement. 

Section 17.  Entire Agreement.   

The text of this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any 
representations, statement, promises or understandings not contained herein shall be of no 
continued force, effect of validity. 

Section 18.  Severability.   

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision hereof shall not affect the validity of any other 
provision hereof and this Agreement shall remain in full force except as to such invalid 
provision. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Unalaska City Council on 
February 13, 2018. 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE: 
 
 
________________________________  
Thomas E. Thomas 

Packet Page 175


	1 Agenda 2.13.18
	2 Minutes
	Draft Regular Meeting Minutes 1.23.18
	Draft Special Meeting Minutes  2.03.18
	Draft Special Meeting Minutes  2.04.18

	3 Akutan
	Resolution 2018-18 REVISED
	Agenda memo akutan
	Akutan Financial Assistance Request Letter to Unalaska
	CT 180000629 - Services to Scuttle FV Akutan for DMLW - Resolve Marine
	Akutan Reimbursement Agreement with Unalaska - REVISED final

	4 CMMP
	Council Memo FINAL
	CMMP second tab
	CMMP first tab
	(000) 2-08-18 Consolidated Summaries

	5 Liquor Licenses
	Memorandum to Council
	Liquor Licenses
	Memorandum to Council
	Call Summary
	3301 LGB Notice
	3301 Complete Application
	3290 LGB Notice
	3290 Complete Application
	1185 LGB Notice
	1185 Complete Application
	4748 LGB Notice
	4748 Complete Application
	1367 LGB Notice
	1367 Complete Application
	3811 LGB Notice
	3811 Complete Application
	2721 LGB Notice
	2721 Complete Application


	6 Taxicab rates
	2018-11 Resolution Taxi Rates
	taxicab rates memo

	7 Budget Goals
	8 Fire Engine
	Fire Engine
	Pierce Arrow Fire Engine Memo to Council nancy edits

	9 SB92
	Resolution 2018-19
	SB 92 Council Memo

	10 Commission Committee Appointments
	Resolution 2018-15
	Applications
	Robert Cummings Committee App 2018
	1142_001


	11 Juneau Lobbying Travel
	12 City Manager Contract
	Resolution 2018-17 Manager Contract - Thomas v.2
	Memo Thomas Contract
	20180209 Employment Agreement 2018 - Thomas FINALv.2




